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this is what's really shocking
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then in 1983 (9 years ago) the Office of Permit Assistance was set
up.
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those entities in government.
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environmental

or public health protection.
So, today, our committees are going to hear testimony on
two separate proposals to streamline environmental permitting.
The first is referred to as the "Permit Assistance Act," which
already exists under current law, and has for over a decade.

This

is a bill which is designed to require permits to be reduced by
setting de minimis standards and granting variances from
environmental laws.
The second is a draft proposal which has been circulated
by the California Environmental Protection Agency to consolidate
environmental permitting under that agency.

As you would expect,

the Cal-EPA draft recommendations are controversial.

Some have

suggested that the EPA recommendations would take away local
control and vest regulatory decisions in a bureaucracy; others
have stated that the proposals are designed to solve permitting
problems

blunt instrument of exempting facilities from the
course, neither of these approaches seems

consistent with
not intend to

Administration's stated position that it does
state environmental laws or to take away

local control
Today, the committee will hear from the Cal-EPA
Secretary, Mr. James Strock, who is the author of the proposal and
Governor's point person on permit streamlining, and I'm sure
Mr. Strock
we've heard

1 want to respond to some of the criticisms that
his proposal.
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Many of us in the Legislature welcome the opportunity to
discuss, with the Administration, its proposals to address
regulatory and permitting problems under current state law, and
it's my hope that today's hearing will allow us to go beyond the
rhetoric and "sloganeering" that has thus far marked discussions
on this subject and to enter into a meaningful dialogue with the
Administration to fix any

problems that might exist in the

state's environmental laws.
Now, turning to our first witness, with respect -ASSEMBLYWOMAN DORIS ALLEN:

Mr. Chairman, before you get

into that, could I -CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:

Yes, okay.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN ALLEN:

have a question of you.

In

the Governor's proposal, Mr. Strock's proposal on streamlining
permits, does that cover CEQA as well?
CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:

Well, we don't know, because we

't had the final proposal presented to us.
we may receive

There is some

today, but the proposal that was, I

think, allegedly leaked to the press some time ago, called for the
creation of seven regional agencies to take the
the local one-issue agenc

pe~mitting

out of

, and in the proposal that was leaked,

Recommendation 11 was to streamline compliance with the California
Environmental

ity Act (CEQA) through designation of program

specific CEQA

f, clarification of administrable permit

actions, and obtaining functional equivalent status for the
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Cal-EPA programs.

That was Recommendation 11 in this document

that was labeled a draft document.
ASSEMBLYWOMAN ALLEN:

I guess why I'm asking is that I

have a major CEQA bill that will be coming before the committee as
well, an 86-page bill, and I've been, just recently, trying to get
around to -- since it is now in final form -- it'll probably have
some amendments -- but wouldn't it have been appropriate to have
had it here today for discussion as well, since it certainly . . . ?
I haven't seen the Governor's either, but I can only say to you
that this one is with the environment and economy in mind as well
and certainly with emphasis on making certain mitigation take
place.

So, why would that not have been for review here since

it's a major streamlining of a major process?
CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:

The first thing, of course, is that

yours is a bill and it will be set for hearing.
oversight

This is an

on proposals that are being made by the

Administration to streamline the permitting process.
ASSEMBLYWOMAN ALLEN:

But that's going to be a bill

; correct?
CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:

We don't know, and in fact, this is

merely one of many recommendations on the Cal-EPA document, and
when it came out, Mr. Strock and his deputies were quick to say
that it was a draft and was not a proposal yet, and we hope to
hear
your question,

proposal will be.

I was merely responding to

"Was there anything in this about CEQA?"
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There is

one recommendation out of fifteen

to

ect.

Your bill, of course,
1

a full hearing on

1.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN ALLEN;

All right.

is here and is interested

I'm hoping anyone who

bill will

1 and contact me for any

the

that they have

to us

a hearing.
CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:

Research

Well, the Assembly Office

recently issued a report which concludes that both the current
Administration and previous Administration have failed to meet the
mandates of the existing laws to assist in expediting permits.
Without being provocative, I

just want to quote two provocative

statements from the Assembly Office of Research's report.
of all, they say on page 8

the report, "Overall, the

performance of the Office

Permit Assistance has been

1

11,

on

s

process

or budgeted
So, we're

afterwards, we're

's

"

at
have been

Either

OPR considers more important
ass

I

say, "

not a

(OPR).

First

providing

itions have not been filled."

to hear first from AOR, and then shortly
to hear from Mr. Richard Sybert, who is
of the Office of Planning and Research

and who I see s

row, as

1 as

Ms. Julie

Department of Commerce, who
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will, no doubt, wish to respond to the AOR conclusions and
recommendations.

But, our first witnesses are from AOR, who

published the report, analyzing the existing permit assistance
laws on the books and making recommendations.

So, our first

witness is Mr. Todd Kaufman.
MR. TODD KAUFMAN:

Thank you.

Mr. Chairman, Members,

I'm Todd Kaufman, Assembly Office of Research.
To evaluate the performance of the Office of Permit
Assistance strictly on permit assistance functions, we reviewed
the statutory requirements for the office and we looked at
documents that were prepared by the Office of Permit Assistance.
Additionally, we prepared a questionnaire for the Office of Permit
Assistance to report on these functions pursuant to requirements
in the law.
Now, we've given everybody on the committee a hand-out
this is a
assessment of

was included in our report.

It is an

performance of the office as it relates to every

statutory function relating to permit assistance.

Now, we've

found that guidelines required by law, which were supposed to be
prepared by the office to expedite local permitting processes,
have never been prepared.

No master permit document, another

requirement under the law, has ever been developed.

The office

has little or no ability to ensure that state agencies are
complying

the requirements of the Permit Streamlining Act,

and they can be of little assistance to developers because the
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office has never developed a system

tracking

applications.
Now, what the Office of Permit Assistance has done in
this area is to prepare the California Permit Handbook, a listing
of all the requirements for every state agency permit in
California.

They also are in the process of updating CEQA

guidel

are of assistance to developers, but we have not

seen any attempt by this office to improve the permitting process
or streamline it.

Now, why has there been a lack of performance?

I think there are three reasons.
First, the 1983 law outlining the office's
responsibilities is really not strong enough.

Where the law could

be mandatory, it is now advisory and permissive.

For example:

the local guidelines I mentioned a minute ago are required to be
produced by the office, but the guidelines themselves were only
to
is
to

permissive authority the law

to convene meetings between permit review

agencies and applicants and to resolve disputes when there are
conflicts among review agencies or between review agencies and
permit appl

's no requirement that they convene these

meetings.
reason for the lack of performance is that
there's been a

of funding for many of the requirements in

But, I've got to say that OPR has never submitted a budget
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change proposal to ask for this money, so it's awfully difficult
for the Legislature to take action on this without that kind of
request through the Governor's budget.
The third reason, and probably the most important for
the office's lack of performance, is that it's made its own job
more difficult by reducing its capacity to perform these
functions.

It has reduced its budget.

When trigger-reductions

were required in the '91-92 Budget Act, the Office of Permit
Assistance took a heavier hit in those allocated reductions.

When

OPR had a choice to make between efforts for growth management or
permit assistance, growth management won out.
We've also identified in our review of the current year
budget an unexplained discrepancy between what the Legislature
passed in the Budget Act, in terms of an appropriation for this
office, and what the Office of Permit Assistance describes its own
to be.
difference.

appears to be something like a $600,000
second hand-out runs through this unexplained

discrepancy.
Per the Budget Act, the office had a budget of $1.2
million and 25.5 personnel years.

When we asked the office to

tell us what their budget and staffing were, they identified a
budget of $640,000 and 11 PYs, a difference of about $600,000 and
9.5 personnel years.

Our conclusion was that the Office of Permit

Assistance diverted funds to purposes they considered a higher
priority than permit assistance or they didn't fill positions for
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of Finance to

We have contacted the Department

some more details on

aware at this point

any

, and they are not

transfer.

reason that OPR has come back to us is that
unallocated
'9

-- from trigger reductions in the

an indication
on in the

OPA.

causes some

Act,

92

things going

there were

that permit

of Planning and

assistance was a

Clearly,

taken

priority; otherwise, they would

their cuts in other
third response was that OPR
possible, resources
which

staff to do growth management activities,

a major initiative in the office.

admission

And although

stream! .............,"~ is a
in a review

Again, this is an

and

Of

have been diverted from
activities.

located, where

that resources

assistance to growth management
fice asserts that permit
activities,

or

the 9 or 10

that
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has

out

the

past year, we don't really see any evidence of that subject being
dealt with as a major component.
Now, based on this lack of performance, our report
recommends the transfer of permit assistance responsibilities from
the Office of Permit Assistance to the Department of Commerce.
Now, we're not suggesting the transfer of State Clearinghouse
functions; we're not suggesting the transfer of Tanner process
responsibilities in the office; and, we're not suggesting the
transfer of neutral mediation functions that OPR would continue to
do in resolving disputes among permit review agencies or between
applicants and permit review agencies.
Now, you will hear Mr. Sybert, Director of the Office of
Planning and Research, respond to these comments by making several
points.

First, he will tell you that our budget findings are an

accounting slight of hand -- they're not.

The Governor's own

budget document supports the argument that we are making here to
you today.
Second, the Director may mislead you by discussing other
functions that OPA performs -- State Clearing house functions,
Tanner responsibilities -- these functions don't bear any
to the permit assistance responsibilities that our
addresses.
ibil

The fact that the office may have other
permit assistance doesn't address their

to perform
f

responsibilities pursuant to state law.
, our report will be characterized as

- 12 -

for the sins and admissions of a
that, this office agrees, failed to do the

previous
permit ass

job.

However, the Office of Permit Assistance

has not provided us any evidence that this failure to perform has
changed in

past

months.

We also have Wendy Umino here from our office to talk
about the Department of Commerce's side of this equation.
CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:

I'm not sure if you want to do this

or whether the nex.t witness does, but leaving aside whether OPR
has done an adequate job on this important task of permit
assistance, I'd be interested in your views about whether there is
any reason to have the responsibility for permit assistance in
more than one

We're going to be talking today about three

different agencies, or departments, these are the Office of
Planning and Research and particularly their OPA office, the
Cal-EPA, and the Department of Commerce.

Is there

reason to

fragment this job of helping businesses get their permits among
these three agencies?
MR. KAUFMAN:

Is

better to have it in one?

None that I can see.

CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:

So, our decision, or our -- We ought

to be trying to focus, then, if there's agreement on that, on
which of

agenc

is in a better

Next, we're going to
MS. WENDY UMINO:
Opportunity lies, we

,

ition to do this.
from Wendy Umino.

Mr. Chairman, Members.

There is hope.

Department of Commerce.
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Commerce provide
the permitting

to s

business development and environmental
diminishing environmental standards.
, briefly,

I'

They have a small business development.

is
have a number

the Department of Commerce
They

small business development centers in California.

These centers were established in 1985.

They are federally

funded; and currently, there are twenty existing sites, and they
propose to have thirty-three sites within the next three years.
The goal of the Small Business Development Centers is to provide
comprehensive services to small businesses, small business owners
who are interested
to

starting businesses in the state, and

Department, in 1990-91, they assisted over 15,000

business owners, provided nearly 4,000 business owners with
in-depth
a

sional counseling and technical assistance, and as
,

or

1,100 jobs during the year.
Bus

Environmental Assistance Centers

one right now
1991

, but

is

centers

of several planned centers.
to

identi

was established in early

ses with a way of
, to get

re

them apply for
them comply with
to

air quality rules.

This program

by

Department of Commerce

the

ifornia Community Colleges, and the South Coast Air Quality
Management District.
And,

final center

the Department of Commerce that

could be of use to California, is their Resource and Referral
Clearinghouse; they have a database which features local, state,
and federal environmental laws, financial assistance information,
economic development programs, technical certification training,
and environmental education programs.

They spent about $1.5

million on computer hardware and software and networks that
support extensive databases.
In our report, "Streamlining the Permitting Process,"
AOR recommends that the permit assistance activities be provided
by consolidating these Small Business Development Centers and
Business Environmental Assistance Centers at the 33 existing and
proposed sites, so that businesses can receive assistance in
business development, permitting, and environmental regulatory
compliance at the same
Now, you may hear this afternoon from the Administration
that it does not support the AOR recommendation to transfer permit
assistance activities

OPR to Commerce.

If so, it might be

interesting to refer to the remarks by Julie Meier Wright,
Director of the Department

Commerce, on March 4, 1992, before

the Assembly Consumer Protection, Governmental Efficiency and
Economic Development Committee, and I quote, "California should
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have a

small

medium-size companies can go

ass

, training
other critical support.

f
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The Department

core

effort.

One-stop access to the many
an important message to the

the state
our state.

California wants to work with the
economic growth."

These

AOR recommendation.

SHER:

Thank you.

Mr. Farr.

FARR:

I'll stipulate that the laws that we

adequately carried out, and therefore, we're
to look
to

we

f

not sure

on what we should have done and

just

from here

future.

I'm

another door of entry at the local

at the SPDC

of, but they're not

I'm very

on

of

use

none

involvement.

Very few businesses
inesses use these,

or really small businesses that
it is a

I

access 1 and we certainly
not
to

,

I

access, but why

think, calls out -- and in this we're going
from a lot

our colleagues, some of us who
if

f
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're really going to

do streamlining in permit assistance, streamlining calls out for
one-stop shopping; one-stop shopping calls out for somebody to
in control; for somebody to be in control -- if you're going to do
it on a regional basis -- calls out for regional government; and
you hear the hues and cries from local government that they want
streamlining, but they don't want regional government.
If you're going to have that process work -- because
you've got so many entities out there carrying out federal laws,
state laws, local ordinances, regional rules, regulations -you're also going to have to build into it a process of conflict
mediation, because we have seen, for example -- let me give you an
example and I'll finish my question-- it's a long question, but
it's based on observation

I authored bills in the movie

industry, which is trying to get access to localities, what we
call a location streamlining model ordinance.

We had that adopted

so that cities and counties could use this model ordinance.

In

checking with the Department of Finance, it's been in use for
many, many years, 60 percent of the rural cities and counties have
adopted the model ordinance; the others haven't because they want
their own home rule, which is greater than what we've done; and
there's no way you can crack that.

So, essentially, the concept

of the model ordinance hasn't been very well utilized, and it's
been in existence for a long time, and it was a streamlining act
and it was a one-stop shopping and that kind of issue.

My question is, did you consider any other options, like
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using some kind of COG, Councils of State Government, have elected
officials on them, or other type of entity that could be useful in
the permit assistance, rather than the Small Business Development
Centers?
MS. UMINO:

We focused on the small Business

Development Centers and the Business Environmental Assistance
Centers because they were currently in existence.

We felt that

because of the moneys involved, and the time, that we needed to
have something fast, and the centers were already in existence,
and they could be built upon.

We felt that there was a way of

consolidating by moving OPA staff, by co-locating the staff in the
regional health and water and air boards into these Small Business
Development Centers, and we felt that eventually, if the Small
Business Development Centers and the Business Environmental
Assistance Centers could get together, they could be providing
this one-stop shop that provided business development as well as
permitting and regulatory compliance assistance.
This is only a small portion of our report, the
organizational process.

In the other sections of our report, we

describe how permit reforms, such as the permit by rule for minor
sources of pollution, how they could be used, how facility-wide
permits might be helpful, how multimedia inspection -- that is,
instead of having one inspector for water, another for air,
another for toxics, that perhaps we could train our inspectors to
have this multimedia focus so that they can look at pollution
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prevention, and actually, the state could be providing, we
believe,

ass

We could be moving some

the

permitting staff into regulatory compliance
CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:

Ms. Allen?

ASSEMBLYWOMAN ALLEN:

Well, one of the things I've

observed in my tenure here -- and I think Mr. Sher probably has
heard me holler about this more than anyone else -- the fact that
when we make legislation and we draft legislation and enact it,
we're very broad with what we expect in our law -- and, I don't
want to touch anything sensitive here -- but that was one of my
objections with the forestry bills, as we gave such broad
regulatory powers to the Administration or, in this case, an
appointed board in the Department of Forestry.

And, when we do

that, we're asking for regulation, and law by regulation, because
we have been so broad in what we are allowing to be drafted as
regulation and haven't been too specific, that when we get these
kinds of broad-brush regulations that are harmful, it takes a long
time, if ever, for

to get back to us to finally do something

about it.
I think the appeal

ses were some of it, the

streamlining operations, as far as I can see, based on what the
materials are here for the hearing today, show that we have not
been complying with our own streamlining permit legislation.

The

fact that oversight is very lacking by the Legislature of
agencies, and some of the most serious complaints I've had from
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, due

process
more than

come

areas

starts

But I

us in the

allows such a

manner

no overs
that

to make

ied with in the manner of the

laws are

the

drafted them.

So, I don't

been seeing some of

if,

which we put into
at all, not at all.

excuse

And that doesn't
It just is, I think, a

weak 1
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
for Mr. Kaufman.

A

the Assembly Office of Research?

process
MR

KAUFMAN:

We f
Ass

I

ieve

was early in the fall, Mr.

gave a questionnaire to the Office of Permit
, correct me

I'm

I

believe it was

them for a response early in

, and we
I

Sir, could you tell me when

attachments there, with the

ieve you

provided by
f.

We

at OPR on
, to the

2

we

, we
at
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ASSEMBLYMAN CHANDLER:
Mr. Kaufman, or
MR. KAUFMAN:

That was this year, though, right
12 months?

Yes.

ASSEMBLYMAN CHANDLER:

Okay.

Again, like Ms. Allen, I

don't want to make any statement that is going to be too critical
here, but as a Member of the Legislature -- and this is a terrible
thing to say if there's members of the press here -- but I feel a
little bit like somebody from Overeaters Anonymous, or something,
who is going to start picking out what my coach on my diet program
has done wrong, and I am wondering -- my final question will be,
if we have directed, through your offices or any other office -maybe the Chairman can answer -- if any attention should be given
to what the California Legislature can and should be doing through
the committee process, or by whatever process, in our own
functions here on a

, year-out basis, and the question is

raised by your background papers, you know we do have legislation
referred to here going back to 1981, 1977, dealing with the same
basic question, and it appears to me, from the materials here,
that all the Legislature has done is essentially say, "We'll go
turning out whatever we want to, and we're going to tell agencies
that we give the responsibility to run this and it's up to them to
do it."

Have we taken a comprehensive look at how we carry out

our business?
CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:

You mean the oversight of bills that

have already been passed?
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ASSEMBLYMAN CHANDLER:
CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:

Yes

Of course, that's what we're

today, here -ASSEMBLYMAN CHANDLER:

Well, when was the most recent

time that we did that, Mr. Chairman?
CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:

On these laws, I don't know

the Local Government Committee has had an oversight
ASSEMBLYMAN CHANDLER:
CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:

Was

No 1

Assembly Office of Research got

10 years ago?
I think the reason that the
with this last year is

because there's been a lot of attention focused on this subject of
permit streamlining in the last year, and there are new proposals
coming out of the Administration

achieving this objective, and

I think, as the background paper points out, and as you just
pointed out, there's been a concern about permit streamlining for
over a decade, and there are laws on

books -- and so what

we're trying to do, I think, with this oversight hearing is to
find out what's the best way to get on with this, and I think
everyone agrees it's a laudable
ASSEMBLYMAN CHANDLER:

be my point, Mr.

Chairman, and I would anticipate, s

several points were made

here in Mr. Kaufman's presentation

the Administration will

say this, but this isn't true and we shouldn't believe -- the
point, it almost sounds like the cross-examination has taken place
on some of this --
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CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:
If

It's already happened, Mr. Chandler.

look at the attachments to the background paper -ASSEMBLYMAN CHANDLER:
CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:

I have.
once the report came out, Mr.

Sybert issued a document that responded to some of those points,
and then the Office of Assembly Research issued their rebuttal.

I

think probably we'd do just as well now to go to the
Administration
ASSEMBLY.MAR CHANDLER:

Well, if I may just ask the

question of Mr. Kaufman, or the Chairman, when was the last time
either of these committees or anybody in the Legislature has come
up with their own proposal, other than what I anticipate will be
raising questions of the Administration's plan?
CO-CHAIRMAN FARR:

As you recall, I've been Chair of the

Local Government Committee just about as long as you've been on
it, and we've had oversight hearings on AB 2557 -- this is the
second one

what went on with our predecessors, I'm not aware

of 1 but as the background paper points out, there have been

reviews of the issue as bills have been adopted, and the one in
1983 1 and later ones that are on the bottom of your page there,
when those bills came up, they were addressed.
think Mr.

making, and I will echo it, is that it is not an

issue of

to find fault for the past, that this issue really

is a big issue
the future.

The point that I

Cali

, and we need to find a solution for

It's going to take a collective effort on part of the
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Administration

the Legislature to come up with a way.

I think the reason

a lot of things haven't happened

is because there wasn't any attention paid to them and they got
swept under the rug,

now we've created a monster that we need

to collectively unravel, and that's the purpose of this hearing,
to get the facts so that we can know where to go from here.
ASSEMBLYMAN CHANDLER:

I would agree with you, with your

characterization that a lot has been swept under the rug, and my
only question at this point is, you know, how much of that the
Legislature itself has done, and how we might go about addressing
ourselves now, or in future oversight hearings, as to what we can
do as a co-equal branch of government to make sure that we're not
adding to the regulatory burden that business is complaining
about, that the Chairman spoke of at the beginning of this
hearing.
CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:

That's what we're here to do, and

I'll just say for the Natural Resource Committee, we don't have
jurisdiction over the Office of Planning and Research, but I think
the reason that we're now much involved with this is because we
have a new agency in California, created last year, the California
Environmental Protection Agency, which does come within the
(inaudible) but in many of its activities of this committee, and
there is a new proposal by the Cal-EPA to deal with this same
subject that was already -- as you pointed out

10 years ago,

there were laws giving it to a different agency.

So there's a lot
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of attention focused on this, a lot of proposals, at least three
agencies now that think they have some part of it, and we're here
to try to kind of sort this out today.
We're going to take up in order our witnesses from the
three agencies, the first of whom is Ms. Julie Meier Wright, who
is the Director of the California Department of Commerce, and we
would ask you to come forward and give us your testimony, please.
MS. JULIE MEIER WRIGHT:
be here today.

I appreciate the opportunity to

I have with me, Glenn Stobber, who is a member of

what we in Commerce call our Environmental Assistance Team.

I

appreciate the opportunity to comment on the "Review of Permitting
Assistance" by the Assembly Office of Research, and I should
start out by saying that I am not an expert on the Office of
Permit Assistance, so I am commenting primarily from the
perspective of the Department of Commerce.

I've been at the

Department of Commerce for eight months and I feel constrained to
point out that the Director of OPR has been in his position a
little bit more than a year, and so while I appreciate the urgency
with which we need to get on with some of these issues, and I
think we all acknowledge that they're very important, if Mr.
Sybert's experience has been like mine, it's been a pretty steep
learning curve.
What I thought I would comment on today is that I think
we have three organizations who have a role in permit assistance
and in the permitting process, but they are like three legs of a
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stool.

Cal-EPA is the environmental leg.

foremost, a regulatory agency.

They are, first and

They are responsible for

administering environmental protection programs and for
enforcement.

They will never be viewed by the business community

as neutral or as an advocate of economic development.

That being

said, let me say that we have been actively involved in the
Cal-EPA permit streamlining proposal and found them generally
receptive to our input.
The Office of Permit Assistance is really the planning,
land use, broad permit assistance leg of the stool, if you will,
and I think they come closest to being the neutral party in this
equation, as I'll outline in just a minute, and the permit
assistance that relates to environmental permitting is but a piece
of what they are looking at overall, in terms of addressing land
use planning and overall permitting.

In some ways, I view Cal-EPA

as a very critical part, but the first step in a much broader
permit process.
CO-CHAIRMAN SBER:

I don't want to interrupt you, but

I'm going to because that's an important point.

You see the role

of the Department of Commerce as dealing with local governments in
land use decisions and helping businesses get their permits with
respect to land use, and you see Cal-EPA as dealing with state
laws on environmental regulations which often requires permits and
helping businesses to deal with that end of it, and you don't get
involved with that.
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MS. WRIGHT:

No, I haven't gotten to us

part was talking about OPA,
like to do is move on to Commerce,

now

I

I'm not sure that the

Department of Commerce would ever be viewed as a neutral
either, because our issues are jobs and economic growth, and while
I personally have a commitment to high environmental standards, as
does this Administration, our issue is to represent

iness in

this process.
CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:

getting permits

In the process

from local governments and
MS. WRIGHT:

No.

In the process of working through what

currently is a bureaucratic maze in state government and
elsewhere.

We tend to be either project- or industry-oriented,

and I'll describe a couple of things in a minute
explain what we do.

might help

But, really, we have gotten involved

environmental permitting for two reasons:

One, it is a very

important part of the site selection process.

the key

things that we do within the Department of Commerce
companies

are seeking to come to Cali

or to expand

California, with options as to where
The second way we look at the
issue is as an industry issue, so
issues

, if we can become

time to
a

generating good public policy on the
the permitting of the perchlor-ethylene
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assist

f

that is an area that we would consider

cleaning industry --

the business climate in the state.

high leverage to help
It's very difficult
CO~CHAIRMAN

SHER:

particular business with
industry-wide; you'd

But there you wouldn't be assisting a
permit problems.

You say it's

developing a policy position in trying to

get the general laws changed or to address this general question?
HS. WRIGHT:
become difficult.

We would take a look at where a process had

Dry cleaners tend to be small businesses, and

so what I'm saying is because we're very resource-limited, we have
tried to concentrate on the high leverage situations for
California.

So, for example, when a major employer -- I'll give

you a couple of examples -- might seek to leave the state because
they can't find certainty or a clear way into the process, we will
be there as the advocate for that business.

Now, I must

emphasize, not to change the environmental standards, but to help
make the process work for
CO-CHAIRMAN SBER:

company.
Is it your vision of the mission of

the Department of Commerce to help particular businesses get the
permits they need to either locate here or do a new process or
expand their business?

Is that part of your role, to help, to

give them assistance

the necessary permits for this

activity that they want t.o engage
MS. WRIGHT:
process would be

I

Is that part of the role?

my vision is that the permit
, easy, nonredundant, predictable, and
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fast as we find when we're competing with other states.
CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:

And the general permitting laws are

for this particular business that needs a permit or a series of
permits?
MS. WRIGHT:

No, in the general processes.

CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:

So you don't see the role of the

Department of Commerce to help individual businesses get the
permits they need?
MS. WRIGHT:

What we do with individual permits is we

assist them -- and as I explained, what we did is adopt something
that we call "Red Teams" -- which comes out of my background -basically, what we do is try to bring the right players together
to work a specific problem, and I can give you a couple of
examples of some projects we've worked on.
One is the General Motors - Toyota venture in Fremont,
called "Numi," and they were trying to modernize their passenger
car line, which would mean that by

year 2000, at full

production, they would emit less air pollution than they currently
emit today.

They were having

getting the air credits

they need because of an interpretation of the Bay Area AQMD, and
they came to us for help.

They are a major employer, and I might

add, after GM - Van Nuys closes, the only surviving auto plant in
California.

We brought together the California Air Resources

Board, Cal-EPA, the Bay Area Air District, and Numi, and we sat
down with them, and we went through their issues, and --
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SHER:

Ass

Was

involved in that?
MS. WRIGHT:

Yes.

CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:

as distinguished

What was

from your role?
MS. WRIGHT:

Well, frankly,

authority to bring people to the table

and they are looking at

the permitting processes in the aggregate to
CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:

But

them.

we need two state agencies

to do the same thing?
MS. WRIGHT:
and

I

s,

door to the

We're real

would like to comment on

to the Small

Business Development Center Program
a misinterpretation or perhaps a

too, because I think there is
of what

can

that

,

current funding and staffing

not

allow
CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:

But,

, our

problem
fferent

is that if you have this respons
state agenc
those

in

, you have the
agenc

being created, so

around this

f

give this

to help

establish this car production fac
agencies working on it -- personnel
has the potential for being wasteful.
agency that will help to accomplish a
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If
two agenc
If the j

were two
-- to me it
a state
this

was a

success,

three

we need three separate agencies with

budgets

three separate staffs to accomplish the

same goal?
MS

WRIGHT:

Well, frankly, I have carved out two people

from our Business Attraction and Retention Program, who also do
those kinds of functions.
neutral mediator, Cal-EPA
advocate.

The Office of Permit Assistance is a
a regulator, and we're the business

Frankly, I think it's a very healthy check and balance

on the process.

When we were in another hearing the other day,

you expressed concern about maintaining environmental standards
and not having, for example, Commerce, as a business advocate, try
to shortcut that process.

And we're not.

That is a personal

commitment I make to you.

But, on the other hand, we are a

business advocate; we want to push the system as hard as we can to
straighten out difficult processes.

OPA, on the other hand, is a

neutral mediator in the process, and they are neither an advocate
or -CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:

Do you see OPA as mediating between

the business entities seeking the permits and your Department of
Commerce helping the business entity on the one side, and the
regulators on

other side who are making life difficult for

them, and Mr. Sybert and the OPA come in and mediate that and try
to bring the two together -- to get you to back off a little bit
from what you're saying ought to be done, and try to get the
regulators to back

f a little bit from what they say must be
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done; is that

see this?

permitting authority.
because of the people

say

s as

a
hand, I

And I must

, it's not nearly as

just described, but on the other

that we each have the constituency that we serve,

so ours

the business community and we're trying to push the

from

standpoint of knowing that if we do not have

faster permitting processes, less costs, and less redundancy in
, we're going to continue to have a problem retaining
inesses

state.

That has to be our effort.

But we are

only a -CO-Cl~IRMAN

same

But that's what all the agencies say,

They say that

same miss
s

what

SHER:

, as

their mission, so you all have

as I can tell, that is, not to have the

will deter business from locating here.

s

of

That's

agencies are saying now, so why do we need three
same thing?

CO-C~IRMAN

FARR:

Mr. Chairman, I don't want to

interrupt, but I think you're not really talking about three
're

MS.

about probably three people, and

..

think

CO-CHAIRMAN FARR:
CO~CHAIRMAN

SHER:

•re probably right.
and --

And their staff people
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CO-CHAIRMAN FARR:

Well, I think your intent is

well-founded, and that is that we need to streamline within state
government as well, but remember how people access this huge
system of government we have.

The businesses that the Department

are running into are ones who are having difficulties in
California and are seeking the help of the Department of Commerce
because they somehow have communicated that they're interested in
each other.

And, with that assistance, the Department has led

them to the Office of Permit Assistance.
better than it probably has.

I think it can work

I think that my experience in

discussing this with businesses is that very few people even know
that when they're in trouble, they usually don't want to turn
to government, because they think government is part of the
problem, so they're not going to look to government as being part
of the solution.

And, you know, business needs to learn that

there are people in government who can help them with their
problem as well, and I think that's part of the educational
process that's got to go into this streamlining act.

But what I

-- I don't think it's unusual to think that businesses like "Numi"
would seek out the Department of Commerce before they would seek
out the Office of Planning and Research.
MS. WRIGHT:

No, that's right.

And we are really a

front door to the process, and I think what you're seeing as
points of duplication are really actually points of commonality
and opportunities for interagency cooperation, and the reason we
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have people designated is because this problem arises frequently
as we seek to retain businesses in California, or as we try to
work a site selection process as one of the many things we do to
assist a company in locating.
CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:

Don't misunderstand me; it's not your

agency that I'm suggesting is not doing what it's (inaudible).

I

think you've got a very clear vision of what the Department of
Commerce ought to be, and that is to be the advocate for
businesses.

It's the question of whether we need another one, and

whether it wouldn't be better to give the personnel that's been
there -- and from what we've heard, have been diverted to other
uses -- to your department, and furthermore, if we need to create
still another permit streamlining process in the Cal-EPA.
MS. WRIGHT:

Let me say that -- as someone who has been

through about a 25 percent budget cut in the last year -- I
tough choices that you make, and

more

important to make sure that if this issue is a priority
funded and staffed, regardless of where it is, and I happen to
think that it belongs in OPR, because if the Department of
Commerce, as a business advocate, is actually doing the ass
work, we could lose our credibility with the community, whereas if
we simply stay and push the system, whether it's OPR or Cal-EPA,
or any one of a number of agencies, I think that we're in the best
possible position to represent business in the state, and to
create a confidence that will have them come to us when they have

-
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a problem.

If they view us as having another mission 1 they'll

back away.
CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:

You do have a proposal, do you not,

to increase your staff and to expand your activities?
MS. WRIGHT:

We have a proposal to increase our field

office staff, yes, and that is because our caseload on both
retention and location has doubled in about the past two years in
our major field offices in Los Angeles, San Jose, and San Diego.
We have one to two people in each one of those field offices now,
and as you know, the sheer geography, not to mention the caseload,
makes it a challenge.
ASSEMBLYMAN TOM HANNIGAN:

This is rather timely,

because I met, on Friday, with one of your field reps who covers 9
Bay Area Counties and 3 more -- I'm not sure where those are -but this was a collection of economic development-types, something
new in the last 10 or 15 years.

Each city and probably most

counties have this economic development function, which seems to
be expanding, and their complaint was that they don't get any
assistance from the state.

Now, I must admit, when they speak of

the state, they aren't excluding the Legislature, but primarily,
it's the Administration.

In part, this was highlighted by your

representative who was there and having to cover by himself -- I
think maybe he said he had one other person in his office (to
cover 12 counties) -- so part of the questioning was, "What do you
do, if you have that big a responsibility?
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I mean, whose phone

calls

you return?"
whole area of retention,

In

seems to me that the

Department of Commerce has to look to some more direct link with
these cities and counties out there, and this in-place, economic
development structure.

I mean, it is -- in the County of Solano,

which I represent, every city has an economic development
operator and they were the ones complaining about not getting
help, and yet, they're the ones that are dealing, if you will, on
the front line with the retention issues and

location -- site

selection and location -- and in large part, moving through the
permitting process, at least at the local level.
MS. WRIGHT:
things.

You're right.

Let me say a couple of

One is, I am painfully aware that Commerce has had an
problem, and that's one of the things we're trying to

correct.

We are, in fact, working to strengthen dramatically, our

1

economic development
, we

,

not cover a state as massive as we are without
are valuable from two standpoints.
sues

we could do everything

One

, they work

at the state

local entities weren't sensitive to business

, and if
issues, we

still not improve the business climate

California.

So,

are critical to what we're trying to do, and

in addition to -- Were you at the Bay Area Economic Forum?
ASSEMBLYMAN HANNIGAN:

No.

The Solano County Economic

Development Corporation had a "round the conference lunch" with

-
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the economic development types from each of the seven cities and
your representative.
MS. WRIGHT:
there.

Well, and that's why we were represented

We have logged a fe.w miles getting out to the local EDCs

to solicit their help and to determine how we can work with them.
And we're also working with the California Association of Local
Economic Development entities which represents about 425 -ASSEMBLYMAN HANNIGAN:
was,

But they're ringing complaint

"We phone and nobody answers," or "We call and nobody calls

us back."

Commerce, the state-- I mean, some of it I don't

expect to occur; some of it

a company "x" indicated an interest

in Oregon, and the Governor met the CEO at the plane, and they
kind of look for the same sort of interest on the part of
California's government.

And I said, "Well, I don't think you can

expect the Governor of California to give the same plane-side
service that the Governor of a state the size of Oregon can.

But

there's clearly not a focused effort on the part of the state to
retain businesses or to attract business -MS. WRIGHT:

I would beg to differ with you, and our

focus at the moment is on retention -ASSEMBLYMAN HANNIGAN:
MS. WRIGHT:

Persuade me.

-- because we have about 140 people who

encompass a range of programs that we are statutorily mandated to
carry out, but what we've tried to do is realign most of our focus
toward retention, because the current surveys say that about 70
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s
the

and expans
that are already

that, but I will tell

state

1

And we are

to do

for starters, in our field offices, when

the caseload grows from 100 cases (meaning an active relationship
with a company) to 200 without 'a commensurate increase in staff,
you make tough choices.

If you have a specific problem that

you're aware of, I'd be very happy to look into
ASSEMBLYMAN HANNIGAN:

, but

No, I'm trying to make the system

work, not some particular problem -MS. WRIGHT:

Believe me, so am I.

ASSEMBLYMAN HANNIGAN:
briefly, and

-- just

1 be my last comment on

is
in

If the issue

but if

, what does the Department of Commerce have

to

retaining businesses in
• WRIGHT:
We are

i

We work with local
out on

s

are

We

established this problem-solving
assistance team that's

resources,

we are trying to deal

from
a

1, in our field
It seems
asked to ass
se
off

I

s, to

I

the more we get

I

more we

but we perform services ranging from s
to local EDCs
such as
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our

ass

where we really are an informational arm, a front door, and
someone that tries to bring the right people together because
we're an advocate for business.
CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:

Ms. Hughes?

ASSEMBLYWOMAN TERESA HUGHES:

When we heard the budget

of your department last week, you had indicated that the
Administration was looking at the possibility of collapsing some
agencies because there was realization that there was some
duplication in services; is that not correct?

You had made some

statement about being aware of the fact that the Administration
was looking at some duplication in service and you thought that
something like that would be forthcoming.

I remember hearing you

saying something generally like that.
MS. WRIGHT:

Ms. Hughes, frankly, I don't remember

exactly what I said, but I do know that the Administration,
through the Commission on Efficiency and Quality in State
Government that will be established this spring, will be looking
very carefully at functions of agencies and departments.
ASSEMBLYWOMAN HUGHES:

Okay.

Well, just from what you

know, from the limited time you've been in your position, do you
feel that perhaps, since your department has been so aggressive in
trying to help in the permit assistance area and helping new firms
and old firms to relocate to compatible sites, that perhaps your
department might be more effective without having the other
bureaucratic layers to deal with, like the layer of Office of
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Permit Assistance.

Since the questions that kept coming

from our committee were -- well, tell us exactly, what do you
different in permit assistance?

Can you perform these same

since you are asking us and saying that you don't have
sufficient staff to do what you presently do -- if we gave you
more staff, could, perhaps, you do this thing that you say you
so well, better without the Office of Permit Assistance, period
MS. WRIGHT:

No.

I frankly believe that the one thing

that's worked quite well since we haye instituted it is these "
Teams," because we simply bring the right people together to
in the same room, at the same time, so that issues aren't dragged
out and protracted.

And, frankly, I think that both Cal-EPA

OPA have been responsive in that process, and I believe that we're
complimentary . . . not overlapping.
CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:

I think-- but we'll hear

from Mr. Sybert-- he'll tell us that he thinks it's

j

of

his office to bring these people together in the same room
to expedite it.
questions.

We've interrupted your testimony with our

That's, in my view, the best way to get at the

of the issue, but we do have a lot of other witnesses,
to give you an opportunity, if you have anything

we want
want

to tell us, before we call on Mr. Strock.
MS. WRIGHT:

Well, let me not go through all the rest

it, because I think you have the general flavor, and I've
certainly testified about it and would be happy to share
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previous testimony, but our motive for getting involved is because
we have lost companies -- Lockheed has refused to build the ATF.
If, in fact, they build it, it will go to Georgia and cost us
4,500 jobs; McDonald-Douglas has said they will not build the
MD-12 in California, again, because of uncertainty, difficulty,
and cost in the environmental process.

We are motivated because

our mission is jobs through economic growth, whether it is
attraction or retention, and I view this as a process that's
ongoing.
I think, based on my understanding about what you will
hear from Rich Sybert and Jim Strock, that you will see that there
are a lot of things ongoing, and I would just like to assure you
that Commerce will actively wade in to represent the business
point of view, particularly as it relates to streamlining
processes, but I do think that the three-legged stools I
described, if you will, are

points where our missions cross,

rather than duplicate.
CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:

Mr. Parr has a final question.

CO-CHAIRMAN FARR:

Your environmental assistance team

how does that work with the economic adjustment unit and the Small
Business Development Centers and the California Environmental
Business Resources Assistance Center?

How are you coordinating

their responsibilities and your responsibilities.
MS. WRIGHT:

Well, the two people, both of whom are

here, that are on our environmental assistance team, have
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backgrounds in the environmental arena, so they have some spec
expertise.
Our Small Business Development Center program is a
program funded by the community colleges and the SBA.

They have

not -- the SBA is, in fact, not
CO-CHAIRMAN FARR:

They haven't been in this arena at

all, have they?
MS. WRIGHT:

No.

No, they haven't.

But the point of

the SBDCs, and the reason that I have a vision that they can be a
one-stop entry into the system is that the largest numbers of our
businesses in California are small businesses.

I mean, I have a

triple-A model in my head, but basically, where they can simply
know through the more aggressive promotion that we've had, that
there is one place they can go as an entry point to the state.

It

is not the last place, necessarily, but it is at least one place
to go start and get useful information.
The BEAC is a pilot program, The Business Environmental
Assistance Center and the related CBRAC program -- I thought I
acronyms in aerospace, but this is driving me crazy -- but the
BEAC is really just a pilot program in Orange County; it had
absolutely no publicity, and it had over 550 inquiries since
of last year, and basically, it is a front door to tell people
where to go and how to get assistance, and what types of
assistance they might need.
as OPA would.

It doesn't run the permitting

We don't run the permitting process from Commerce
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s

for the larger of the high-leverage companies; we simply try to be
a catalyst to bring the right people to the table and make things
happen.

So, while I think our role is critical, and I think it

sends an important message insofar as the business in the state, I
also don't want to understate how far we go into the process.

We

are an informational and assistance arm as much as anything.
CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:
MS. WRIGHT:

Okay.

CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:

Thank you for your testimony.
Thank you.
Mr. Strock, you're next.

He's coming

forward with a bundle of papers to give us the final proposal, I
guess, of Cal-EPA on consolidating and streamlining the permit
process -- is that what's in those satchels?
MR. JAMES STROCK:

Mr. Sher, you're such a good

professor, as well as a Legislator, I like to be prepared, so I
brought a series of things to be prepared to go through, and if I
must -CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:
MR. STROCK:

What's in the bottle, Mr. Strock?

Apple juice.

Thank you for asking, Mr.

Sher, lest there be any doubt to the viewers of CALSPAN.
If I might ask your leave, Mr. Sher and Mr. Farr, to
briefly postpone the Socratic part to give a brief statement about
what we're trying to do in this area, because I think it's one
that can be misunderstood, and I would like to be clear up front
about what we intend to do.

With me is Mr. Michael Kahoe, who I

know is known to many people here, who is our very able --
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CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:

Will you tell us, Mr. Strock,

process, where you are in the process, chronologically, in terms
of this draft proposal and follow it up with a final proposal?
MR. STROCK:

Yes.

proposal for public comment.

We intend to release, today, a draft
The draft you mentioned before was

solely an internal draft, as you know, and this one reflects
additional thought and will begin a process where we intend to
work on administrative, and then work with you on legislative
issues in a very public way, and if I might briefly give you the
background to that -CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:
MR. STROCK:

Please.

As you've been long aware, because of your

key role in doing it, California has long been a world leader in
environmental improvement and now the requirements of that
leadership are changing and it's clear that a new era is upon us.
As Governor Wilson has long emphasized, not only are environmental
improvement and economic reconcilable, but they clearly are an
indispensable combination that provides immense opportunity
our state.
A linchpin of that opportunity is our high environmental
and energy standards.

Where those standards -- and here I speak

about the specific levels of performance that people must achieve
to meet these laws, where those standards are clear and
scientifically based, they clearly can make our industry more
competitive, and this is especially true as other jurisdictions,
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both within the U.S. and abroad, either move toward, or adopt, our
standards.

Now, the opportunities, economical

, are sometimes

direct, as in the spread of our auto emissions requirements to
other states, and the consequential demand for reformulated fuels,
first marketed in California; likewise, environmental services
firms -- and that's becoming nationwide -- an over $100 billion
industry.

If they can make it in California, they can clearly

perform anywhere because of these high standards, and it's clear
that many other enterprises, not directly in the business of
environmental protection can also reap financial benefits through
the application of total quality management principles needed to
meet toxic limitation targets.
Now, a key indicator of our success with environmental
standards is the regularity with which we're approached by others
who are considering adopting those standards.

But, in contrast,

at least during my tenure, no one has approached us seeking to
adopt California's permit processes.

While California has among

the highest environmental standards in the world, we're also
viewed as having a particularly burdensome and complex puzzle
palace of regulatory permitting requirements.

Under Cal-EPA

programs alone, business must maintain more than 255,000 operating
permits, and this is solely in the state Cal-EPA area alone.
From the perspective of achieving environmental
improvement, and that is the sole goal -- and it must animate my
work -- it is essential that the permitting process add value to
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the greatest extent possible.

To the extent it doesn't, it

burdens business, it vexes the public, and diverts resources for
environmental protection into the pockets of intermediaries, like
lawyers, and it also threatens public support for environmental
protection.

Now, clearly, while our high standards, backed by

sound science, are the jewels in the crown of our environmental
program, our permitting program is merely a delivery mechanism,
whose effectiveness should always be open to reconsideration and
reform to ensure added value.
Those of us committed to environmental improvement asked
in the past, and will continue to ask that the private sector
accept the challenge of change.

Given the importance of our

mission, people have the right to demand that same willingness on
our part, and we must back this up.
Now, over the past several months, we have worked on a
series of proposals, for consideration and comment, that we will
be releasing to you today, but our overall goals are clear.
First, environmental improvement must be invigorated by these
proposals and in no way compromised.

Second, simplicity in

process should be sought, and the role of lawyers and other
intermediaries, if people feel the need to go to them, should be
limited to the greatest possible extent.

New levels of government

should not be created, instead we should make better use of what's
already there.

Public accountability should be focused and

strengthened, and we must keep a very open mind for different
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areas of reform.
I think, in closing, before your questions, I'd like to
just stress what Professor Drucker, at Clarement, has said in his
essay, "Entrepreneurship in the Public Service Institution."

He

said that public institutions must be fully as much
entrepreneurial and innovative as any business."

He adds,

" ... that the rapid change in today•s society, technology and
economy, are simultaneously an even greater threat to them and a
greater opportunity."

I will work with you; it will be intended

to achieve that opportunity and we believe it's an area where,
given the good work of this committee, given the useful parts of
the AOR report, and the Administration's commitment, that we could
make progress this year.
CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:

Thank you for your testimony.

Let me

get back to the question I put at the outset, and that is, where
we are in the process?

You say you're going to release a document

today?
MR. STROCK:

Yes.

CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:

I have a document to give you today.
Is it a narrative, or is it in the

form of a bill to be introduced in the Legislature?
MR. STROCK:

No.

It's a narrative, because it's very

clear that these issues are so important, and so important to get
right, that we want a very public process.

We've gone through it

very carefully to put that together.
CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:

You call it a draft, and you're going
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to welcome comment you say.
MR. STROCK:

We will not only welcome it, we urgently

seek it.
CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:

And in what form do you expect the

comment to be forthcoming?
MR. STROCK:

We would like written comment to the

greatest extent possible, because that can add discipline.
CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:

You don't want a public hearing on

the document that will give people a chance, in a public hearing,
to testify?
MR. STROCK:

We will be having a whole series of

meetings in different areas, and we'll certainly welcome any due
consideration.
CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:

Cal-EPA is going to have a series of

hearings of its own around the state?
MR. STROCK:

No.

No, we've not gotten to that -- we've

not, no.
CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:

So, what you're -- you're going to

publish this as a draft and request written comments from anyone
who are interested?
MR. STROCK:

And I know a lot of folks are interested,

I'm pleased to say.
CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:

And the next step would be, after a

period of time, to take your draft as influenced by the comments
and to introduce legislation to --
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MR. STROCK:

Yes.

Parts would require, depending on

what they are, legislative action, other things could be done
administratively, but as for both, we're going to seek disciplined
comment.
CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:

Since you're going to release it

today, and since we won't see it until after this hearing, maybe
you could give me a hint -- is one of the aspects
MR. STROCK:

It's an excellent proposal; I can vouch for

it personally.
CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:

I know all the work you do is

excellent, but I mean, more specifically, does it have regional
offices of Cal-EPA as a part of it.
MR. STROCK:

Yes.

that part, yes, it does.

If I could explain in some detail

And here's how it's set up.

As you

know, there is a real need for environmental protection to have
air, water, waste, pesticide issues, dealt with to the greatest
possible extent together, because, right now, we can not easily
get, for example, information on pollutant leadings and emissions

CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:
Mr. Strock.

Well, I don't know why you say that,

If a person or business needs an air quality permit,

why do they need to have a regional agency dealing with all these
subjects, when there is a specific subject agency that now has the
authority to receive the application and grant the permit.
MR. STROCK:

No, there are some circumstances where
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one

but that's really

'

--

first, I want to

environmental issue here.

stress,

As you know, one

ses, for example, in the U.S. EPA structure, as

of

states, is that they have not done well to
air, water, and waste, as a practical matter, outside of
In the permitting area, it often occurs, too,
for larger developments that have more than one to
deal with and often are not sure, particularly in the waste area,
one to go to, and co-location could be useful.

Now, a

area of concern, because of the way things are set up,
local districts

area where -- now, clearly,
local government components
CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:
MR. STROCK:

a

Membership --

So our view of that would be -- we don't

on that.
SHER:

You're not proposing to take the air

Air Quality Management
MR. STROCK:

No, we're not.

?

What we're going to seek in

comment is for people to help explain to us how
brought together better.
use a

And we intend to

, including people from business, the
and the government.
CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:

One other question.

In the draft

we've seen, and which, your office said was really a
"

II
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MR. STROCK:

I hadn't even seen it yet.

CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:

Right.

But then you did take it

around and share it with people
MR. STROCK:

I needed to, because once it was leaked, I

didn't want other people-- and I'm very open-- we wanted folks
to have whatever anybody else had.
CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:

Well, as I indicated earlier, there

were some fifteen recommendations in this draft and at least five
of them, it seemed to me, overlapped the mandate of the Office of
Planning and Research.

I mean there were specific things under

the legislation that are within the jurisdiction of OPR under the
Permit Assistance Act.

Can you tell us whether those

recommendations, including, for example, developing a uniform
permit tracking system for Cal-EPA -- that's something that OPR
has to provide permit assistance materials.
responsibility of OPR.

That's a

Are we going to see proposals like that in

this document you're going to distribute today, which overlap the
responsibility of the Office of Planning and Research and their
permit assistance responsibilities?
MR. STROCK:
believe overlap.

You're not going to see proposals that I

You are going to see goals for us in those areas

for really two reasons.

The first is, environmental protection

often has the same goal here as people dealing with them from an
economic standpoint in terms of, again, getting a comprehensive
approach, air, water, and waste, and that necessarily leads to
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permit streamlining types of issues.
Secondly, it's my very strong belief that there must be
a feedback mechanism for the agency to know on a day-to-day
practical level how its permits are working or where they're being
challenged, beyond waiting for legal-type challenges by lawyers,
and we have to view, as one part of our mission, that the public
are customers -CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:
assistance.

This is not feedback; this is permit

Get some materials out there; help the people get

their permits.

That's exactly the responsibility and the role of

the Office of Planning and Research under the Permit Assistance
Act.

You don't see any overlap between your original draft and

the functions of OPR and OPA.

I don't on that, because I'll make

it very clear, it has got to be -- where I sit, there are limited
resources for environmental protection and the fact is, anything
we can do to improve our process to deliver those high standards,
we've got to do.
CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:

But they're limited resources, Mr.

Strock, as you know better than we do up here -MR. STROCK:

You've may be very aware this year.

CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:

Well, I heard something, but in your

budgets for the people you need to hire to carry out these
functions, and if we have the same functions, or virtually the
same functions, in two separate state offices, both of which want
to build that into their budgets and get the personnel to carry it
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out, that's wasteful state government.
overlap.

That's duplication; that's

And you don't see any of that, and you've just prepared

this new plan, and you're going to welcome us to look at that and
see if we find any overlap in what you're proposing with what
already exists under state law in this other office.

MR. STROCK:

Mr. Sher, I think it's important, again,

looking at it -- I see it solely from the environmental
standpoint, OPR has a much bigger job with all the state permits,
but in the environmental area, as you're very well aware, it's
clear that the costs of compliance with environmental regulations
is the real cost . . . not the state government budget.

We're

about to try to get those costs for the state; nationally, we know
they've 15 times the budget for us to, again, make the best use of
our limited resources, and make

if we're getting what we want

from the public, we've got to have our own involvement in making
the permitting system work, and again, too, I do not want to be in
a position where people feel 1

the permitting system is so

convoluted -- that it always requires a lawyer to deal with it,
and the like --that they'll come up here to you all and want to
get rid of the whole system, or maybe fight the very standards
that really are a key, both environmentally and economically.
CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:

But, maybe I'm getting the point.

You see, if you do your job really well, then there will be no
need for Ms. Wright to do it in the Department of Commerce because
everything will be hunky-dory.

She won't need people and budget
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in order to lean on you to do better to get these permits out, and
neither will we need that permit assistance under the Permit
Assistance Act, and Mr. Sybert's operations; is that right?
MR. STROCK:

That's --

CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:

Because you're not (inaudible) at

all.
MR. STROCK:

-- I suggested.

No, because my bottom line

is protecting the environment, and there are people whose bottom
line is otherwise.

There's got to be an interchange in the

broader sense.
CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:

I agree with you.

Your bottom line

ought to be protecting environment, but we're not talking about
that today; we're talking about streamlining the permitting
process, and that's to help the

compani~s

that're impacted, the

individuals and the businesses, to comply with these laws, but
your main mission -- I agree with you -- is protecting the
environment.
CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:

Mr. Farr?

CO-CHAIRMAN FARR:

I have a question -- because I

envision what you just told us:

you want to consolidate a lot of

the single purpose entities into one regional center to deal with
the regulatory framework of state government; is that correct?
MR. STROCK:

What we would propose for consideration,

Mr. Farr, is not creating a regional government, but taking -- and
this is solely Cal-EPA here speaking in this proposal -- is taking

-
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the existing regional offices -- there are different numbers as
you know, in each area -- and combining those, with the exception
of the air area -- as a way to get efficiencies and get a better
environmental result.
CO-CHAIRMAN FARR:

How does that differ at all from what

the Speaker is proposing in Assembly Bill No. 3?
MR. STROCK:

Well, my recollection is -- and I've not

looked at his bill recently -- my recollection was that he wanted
to combine a whole series of areas into regional governments with
additional powers.

This is merely to take existing regional

offices, cut the number of them, and make them continguous with
air sheds and water sheds.
CO-CHAIRMAN FARR:

For example, give me an example of

what entities you're talking about combining.
MR. STROCK:

As you know, the parts within Cal-EPA are

the State Air Board, the Water Board and the Regional Boards
CO-CHAIRMAN FARR:

You said at the outset you would

exempt air.
MR. STROCK:

Yes.

The pesticides area, the taxies area,

solid wastes.
CO-CHAIRMAN FARR:
MR. STROCK:

That's all?

That's it.

CO-CHAIRMAN FARR:
MR. STROCK:

That's it?

Not water?

Oh, I'm sorry, water yes, water as well,

the regional boards -- I thought I'd said that.
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CO-CHAIRMAN FARR:
COG into the mix.

Well, the Speaker includes LAFCO and

Then, how would that differ from what OPR is

doing with their Office of Permit Assistance?

Suggest that you're

going to provide the place where people come to get the permit,
and the offices of OPR and Julie Wright are going to lead them to
your door?
MR. STROCK:

What I would like to do is to have our

people co-located to the greatest extent possible in areas that
geographically represent a consensus as to environmental needs
between air, water, and waste, and the like.

And then by having

them in one place, cross-cutting areas of concern that often have
overlap in real life, like water and waste and so forth, could be
dealt with in a more systematic and efficient way.
CO-CHAIRMAN FARR:

All right.

Aren't you just sort of

taking a small bite out of the apple?
MR. STROCK:

It's the only bite I've got, Mr. Farr.

But, I think from the reaction I've got, it's a big bite to some
people.
CO-CHAIRMAN FARR:

Well, certainly it's threatening to

those you want to consolidate, but we also have a lot of other
entities that deal with regulatory decision-making at the local
level.

You've got, particularly now with the congestion and

relief management plans that are regional in nature, and I fail to
understand why you think that keeping air exempt is going to
improve --
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MR. STROCK:

Well, I meant that would be discussed in a

public group, and that's the idea, to get more input on how to
bring that in.

It's just that it wouldn't be structurally--

we're not proposing in the draft that structurally it be collapsed
into a smaller number of districts up front as other areas are.
Clearly, you've raised, very well 1 as you have in other forums,
the link to growth management or different types of state
planning, and that also has to be considered, and we're working
very close with Mr. Sybert.
CO-CHAIRMAN FARR:

See, I think one of the problems is,

as I listen to a lot of complaints

you hear the complaints,

then you have to kind of say, "How do you fix it?"

And what is

lacking out there is any understanding of where you have to go.
MR. STROCK:

Yes.

CO-CHAIRMAN FARR:

You know, when you need a driver's

license, you know you have to

to DMV to get it.

If you have a

vehicle that needs licensing, I mean, it's all at one -- that's
probably the best example

one-stop shopping in California.

In essence, I think we need some type of process, maybe
it's an ombudsman at the county level that you call and say,
"Look, I want to get a building permit.

I want to add onto my

house," or "I want to build an oil refinery.
to get there from here?"

What do I have to do

And that's what is lacking in

California, is anyone who can tell you that.
just address, sort of, the issue
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And I think if you

a couple of agencies that

you're familiar with and work with, and say, "Well, we're going to
at least pull these together."
You're not really going to answer that question of "How
do I get there from here; tell me what I need to do."

That's what

businesses are saying, not only tell me what I need to do, but
tell me what you think it's going to cost, how many permits am I
going to have to pay for, and what time-frame am I going to do it
in?

We have said that you have got to do it in a year, and if

local agencies -- well, the first thing we hear from everybody is,
"Well, when I go to the first window, they make me sign a waiver
saying I won't hold them to the year."

Now, if the year is

unreasonable, and it may be and that's why the waivers have to be
signed, what is the time-frame that's going to

necessary?

And

it seems to me that to get a building permit to add on to your
house ought to be a lot more -- ought to be almost like a consent
calendar type thing we use
relatively easy, versus a
area where you'd have to

, which is
new

out in the rural

through annexations and issues like

that which may take years.
CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:

You say that, Mr. Farr, because while

you served on a Board of Supervisors, you never served on a City
Council and know what's involved in somebody wanting to put a wing
on their house, and the neighbors objecting.
CO-CHAIRMAN FARR:
done by any kind of

Well, perhaps those shouldn't even
,
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to be left back in

is
to
start,
Cali
411 or the

Assistance was

and

911 of "

it

now we're
seems 1

z

I

chairs on a
MR. STROCK

discussed.

I

for
because
because
much
1

air, water,
to

total

opposed
we

see that now as
then
Mr. Hayden.
function
that
locate

ses
any

of the services that
MR. STROCK:

?

agency

Not to my knowledge, but I must say I can't

speak-- I'd have to leave it to Ms. Wright.
ASSEMBLYWOMAN HUGHES:

All right.

The other thing is,

do they accelerate the service that your agency provides to any
entity?
MR. STROCK:

Well, I think one of the immediate roles

they play is one Mr. Farr referred to earlier.

A business may

well not want to come to an Environmental Regulator looking for
help for all sorts of reasons.

They want a business advocate, and

for that reason, it's quite natural, I think

that they would look

to Commerce.
ASSEMBLYWOMAR HUGHES:

All right.

In this big secret

document that you are about to -MR. STROCK:

No, it's not at all secret, I'm about to

give it to you.
ASSEMBLYWOMAN HUGHES:

, well that'

take us a week

or two to read, but -MR. STROCK:

I hope not . . . it's only about 40 pages.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN HUGHES:

In this big secret document that

you're about to unveil, have you designed anything that is going
to make the process easier and more efficient, so that we do get
cleaner air, better water, or whatever, or whatever you're
supposed to be doing, easier?
going to have more j

It sounds to me as though you're

for your agency to perform or you're going
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s·I

to

above, more or

MR. STROCK:

Less 1

the

ASSEMBLYWOMAN HUGHES:
MR.

..

So that we can cut

I'm just asking a question.

Can I give an answer?

whole point of consol
be to have the

budget.

Let me explain.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN HUGHES:
MR. STROCK:

?

The answer

, the
would

these functions in the fie

and water areas together, and then hopefully,

that could lead to some additional economies in cross-cutting
areas -- from

lation through permitting to regulation to

enforcement to

.

CO-CHAIRMAN
Hughes, was

I

personnel in

1

the waste

some of

in Cal-EPA;

, Ms .

think what he just
water

others

f

not necessarily

?

1,

MR.

Well,

tight

.

'S

doesn't have a

I

, we cut our

signif

was

was created,

to

up here
we're not

I

was when

a

doing that.
SHER:

But

potential savings are

you're
ies which are

certain s

?
MR.

:

Yes®
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the

CO-CHAIR.MAN SHER::

It's like

and

other bank combing where you can get
duplicative things.

some of the

Is that where you think the savings are?

MR. STROCK:

That's correct.

CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:

Mr. Hayden?

ASSEMBLYMAN TOM HAYDEN:

Yes.

You had a question.
Mr. Strock, excuse me, I

have a 4:00 o'clock meeting, but I wanted a brief answer to one
particular question that may serve as an example here, because I
haven't read the document, and I hope to get it today.

But when I

last saw you, I believe it was at the Hilda Bay Meeting in Santa
Monica, where you addressed the audience.

ocean -- let's take

the ocean issue, because the regional boards are in the purview of
the new EPA organization; is
MR. STROCK:

correct?

That is correct.

ASSEMBLYMAN HAYDEN:

All

give permits to dischargers,

boards

a

's

over what criteria

environmental

a

advocates, including myself,
problems.

some

No serious criteria; no definition

enough of cumulative chemicals; the
instead of regulatory monitoring

much is
by dischargers

discharges (in other

words, they have to turn themselves

if they

existing standards).

the Governor's budget and

the state budget

And, in terms

1 along

the

since most people are yelling most

loudly about contamination of

water --
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, I think

the regional boards'

something like only 15 percent

f

budget goes to ocean protection, and you've got 9 of these boards,
so it's a first-class example of regulatory overload or breakdown
that you're trying to address.
institution

Now what would this parallel

I guess it's parallel in terms of offices, but

really, you're over the process.

What, in this case, would you do

differently than the present very weak performance -- both in
terms of commitment, staff, criteria, and budget -- what would you
do differently than the regional board would do?
MR. STROCK:

If I could refer to it without reference to

the regional board, I think what we could do that would be
different
ASSEMBLYMAN HAYDEN:

How would it work for better ocean

protection and for a clearer permit process?
MR. STROCK:

I think the most immediate way it could

work in that situation would be that you would have the sc
who work on risk assessments in air and water and waste,

1

which affect the ocean, dealing with the same data in one
place.
ASSEMBLYMAN HAYDEN:
MR. STROCK:

Scientists from your agency?

Yes, but also scientists who exist in

various components now. They'd have data that deals with
area.

same

Again, simple but there.
ASSEMBLYMAN HAYDEN:

Oh, wait.

Let's stop there

know of no scientists who are independent scientists who are
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I

dealing in that area.

There used to be an agency called

that was funded by the dischargers to tell them whether
were discharging into the ocean was safe.

Fourteen or fifteen

staff scientists signed a letter to me and other Legislators
saying that their results were being distorted by their boss.
(Recording stopped dead from Transcriber's count 199 to
241)
... early today?

ASSEMBLYWOMAN ALLEN:

MR. STROCK:

Going to bring it up to you in a minute.
Okay.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN ALLEN:

That' 11 help all of us, I

think, because seeing the directions you're taking in concept
before you put in the commas and the dots, I think, will answer
some of my questions, and that was specifically what I wanted to
ask, when do we have this in our hands?
MR. STROCK:

We're seeking detailed comment, Ms.
Okay.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN ALLEN:

MR. STROCK:

So, I'm --

We'd really appreciate that.

CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:

Mr. Hannigan?

ASSEMBLYMAN HANNIGAN:

Mr. Strock, I'm trying to

understand how the government, the state government, is

to

streamline this permitting process for businesses and those
provide economic activity in our state.
Recently, I had the occasion to meet with a group
landowners and developers who are in the planning process
local agency in an attempt to develop a rather large area
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a

some environmental sensitivities.

They called me to meet with

because they were particularly frustrated with the Department
and Game, and I'm just setting the scenario up, and you
tell me how your agency would react to it, and how this is going
to

some kind of certainty to these property owners and

issue was the Swenson Hawk, and Fish and Game
apparently has drafted a set of regulations which require
environmental mitigation for the nesting areas, but also
environmental mitigation for the forage, which can be up to 10
radius from the nest of these hawks -- one for one

draft

regulations, not yet in place, as far as I know, but are being
by the department in their discussions with these developers
this local community.

Now, what does Cal-EPA see as its role

that kind of a looming head-on collision between a local agency
use planning and environmental protection and the
a state agency (which works with you, presumably,
the environment).
MR. STROCK:

Well, Mr. Hannigan, as Mr. Sher pointed

specific case, it's a separate agency altogether, as
the Resources Agency.

It does point to something we're

on generically, that Ms. Wright referred to in the areas
Cal-EPA:

when people have a particularly severe

particularly one that could set precedent (because our
are so limited), we will get in there and try to make
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certain that things are making sense

people get straight

answers.
ASSEMBLYMAN HANNIGAN:

So there is nothing in your

draft which we are to receive, that addresses this particular
dilemma -- this is a real one -- this
MR. STROCK:

't --

Oh, yes, indeed.

ASSEMBLYMAN HANNIGAN:

Actually, it's typical of the

kind of frustrations that people from time to time express to me,
and I've yet to see anything that would provide some kind of
improvement over the situation.

Your response is, you know, if

that came to your attention, you'd

what you could to help, but

it doesn't -- there's no -MR. STROCK:

The Endangered Species is, of course, a

federal act for the most part -- well, federal law -ASSEMBLYMAN HANNIGAN:
MR. STROCK:

and Game is implementing it.

Fish and Game

Resources Agency, of course, inc

involved in it, and the
Fish and Game.

I don't

that in my agency at all.
CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:

But

have a comparable

problem, I think is what he's

It could be somebody who

had a water discharge problem.
ASSEMBLYMAN HANNIGAN:

But in this situation, I am led

to believe that at some point a permit would be required.
why they're dealing with Fish and Game.
CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:

That's not under EPA.
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That's

ASSEMBLYMAN HANNIGAN:

Then there's some further

permitting malaise that they have to deal with, outside of your
agency?
MR. STROCK:

It's not in our agency.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN ALLEN:

Mr. Chairman, if I may comment on

that point?
CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:

Well, I really think we're really off

the point on that particular question, and -ASSEMBLYWOMAN ALLEN:

No, it's not, because they're

talking about land use, and land use is under EPA, and it's also
doubled up with the Resources Agency.
CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:
is under EPA.

Well, I would disagree that land use

Land use is under the city councils and the boards

supervisors now, and until we have regional agencies -ASSEMBLYWOMAN ALLEN:

But land use also goes along with

and all the other environmental problems of our

CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:
not

Zoning laws and the general plans are

Cal-EPA or the Resources Agency, but -ASSEMBLYWOMAN ALLEN:
CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:

Both are environmental.

Why don't you and I have this

d~bate

a little bit later, because I'm really concerned about all the
ses that are here and how late it's getting, so if
'll let us go to -Thank you, Mr. Strock, and we'll be looking forward to
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receiving the
Sybert, you're next.
Or was

CO-CHAIRMAN
and hand it out.
Thank you, Mr.
glad to have you be

MR. SYBERT:

I

with me.
CO-CHAIRMAN

MR. SYBERT:

I

experience, but I had more
hemlock at the end
CO-CHAIRMAN
the Socratic

MR. SYBERT

I

is the Acting
been for several
committee, as

1 as

moment.
What the

f

unanimous vote of
Governor's Off

1)

as a

a

including writing CEQA guidelines and
distributing CEQA documents.
2) Render technical assistance to applicants
and to local government in permitting
matters.
3) Mediate disputes in permitting matters.
4) Handle the Tanner process for hazardous
waste facility siting.
It's located within the Office of Planning and Research
because of the importance of these issues to land use planning and
because of the importance of these issues to local government,
both of which are key responsibilities of OPR.
It's located within the Governor's Office because of the
need for a neutral forum and a neutral process that is neither a
business advocate nor an environmental regulator.
We are not an agency.
we're not an agency.

We're not a line department;

In a way, the name "Office of Permit

Assistance" is a little misleading.

Perhaps it ought to be named

the "Cubicle of Permit Assistance."

It only has a handful of

people.

We are, if you will, Messrs. Chairmen, the institutional

ball-bearings between the various agencies that do have line
responsibility for permits.
There are not points of duplication here.
has permit responsibilities.

Each agency

The bulk of them are environmental

and they are within Cal-EPA, but in addition, Fish and Game,
within the Resources Agency, issues permits.

CALTRANS, within

business transportation and housing, issues encroachment permits.
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The State Lands Commission issues permits.
coordinate where necessary.

The job of OPA is to

We have an interagency role.

We do

not have a role as a business ombudsman, that is Commerce's role.
And I think it is important to understand that this Administration
is not the Holy Roman Empire.

We don't have little separate

princelings and fiefdoms with a figurehead.

We all work for the

Governor, and ultimately, we all work for the people of
California.
Now, OPA is also responsible for administering the
Permit Streamlining Act.

The AOR report, which was presented to

you at the beginning of this hearing, is almost entirely wrong,
and I can go into that in detail if you wish, but they are right
in one thing, and that is that we have not done much in this area
in the past.
CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:

It's not only this Administration but

the previous Administrations; is that right?

They have not done

all that much in the past.
MR. SYBERT:

I was, in fact, directing my comments to

the previous Administrations and the previous Legislatures, for
whatever the reasons.
CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:

Wait a minute.

The Legislature

enacted the law and gave this function to this branch of the
Executive, right?
MR. SYBERT:

That is correct.

CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:

What did the Legislature not do?

-
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MR. SYBERT:

Inadequate funding.

CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:

But wait a minute.

initially, does it not, from the Administration?

The funding comes
And, in many

cases, the Administration did not ask for the funding for this
office.
MR. SYBERT:

That's also correct.

CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:

Well, so then the Administration is

involved with the funding.

It's not up to -- the Legislature

doesn't initiate the funding, and if the Administration doesn't
ask for it, that reflects the priority of the Administration,
doesn't it, and its willingness to carry out this function, and if
they weren't asking for enough funds and positions to carry out
the function, that must be put at the doorstep of the
Administration, must it not?
MR. SYBERT:

Mr. Chairman, I'll be blunt.

doesn't matter whose fault it is.

It really

The fact is, it wasn't done in

the past, and now we have a new Administration, and it's time to
get moving with it, and that's what we're doing.

OPA is

developing a consolidated project information form now.

This was

done four years ago, and it came to naught because of
institutional resistance.
ethic now.
system.

We have a different Administrative

OPA is also designing a statewide permit tracking

All these efforts are complimentary to and consistent

with what Cal-EPA is doing.
CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:

Well now, there shouldn't be two
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't
?

one.
'S

track

Resources
0

OPA

that that

one

a

not

'S

be carried on
the Resources

or

overlap, right?
I'm

MR. SYBERT:

so

about the
that there

one

of contact

2 -

want to come to state

government and say, "What is happening with this permit?"

That

tracks, I might add, what the State Clearinghouse already does
with CEQA documents.
CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:

So OPA does not do the tracking but

knows where the tracking is being done, and if someone wants to
know, you can find it for them; is that right?
MR. SYBERT:

I wouldn't put it that way.

CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:
MR. SYBERT:

How would you put it?

I'm not sure, but I'd want some time to

think about it.
CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:
MR. SYBERT:

Oh.

May I go on?

CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:
MR. SYBERT:

Yes, please.

Okay.

In a nutshell, Messrs. Chairmen,

what OPA's role in permit streamlining is, is that we coordinate
the interagency
streamlining.

the

government aspects of

It's set forth

brought with me.

I

, on page 3 of the

I

We support the efforts of Cal-EPA to streaml

its own internal permits.

We support the role

the Department

of Commerce and its small business and regional business
development and environmental assistance centers.
for all of these programs to work together.

The need

We are all on the

same team; we are all serving the Governor's directive to maintain
high environmental standards while facilitating the business
climate.

These are distinct functions, and frankly, it
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't

matter if you all put them in one agency, they will still
distinct functions.

The point is that this is a single

Administration and we're all working together on a single
directive from the Governor.
I'd be happy to entertain any questions.
CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:

When you say you support their

streamlining their permitting.
on to do that; is that right?

Support means you're cheering them
You don't mean that you have any

function in doing that, they're going to do it; each of these
agencies ought to streamline its own process and make sure these
permitting processes work efficiently and cost-effectively and
with the least burden on the regulated community; but that's not
the role of your agency to do that.
MR. SYBERT:

Our role is to be helpful in providing

thoughts and ideas on that, and we have participated in the
internal Cal-EPA effort, and our larger job is to take
individual agency pieces and make sure they fit together

a

coordinated whole.
I think Mr. Hannigan's question
CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:

Well, wait a minute.

was just up here and he told us it's his role.

See, Mr. Strock

He's got

these

agencies under him, and it's his role to coordinate the air and
the solid waste and the water, so he's got this coordinating to
make sure they all fit together.
MR. SYBERT:

Now, where do you fit into

Mr. Sher, with respect, you're putting
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?

words in my mouth

Cal-EPA is responsible

the

permits issued by the departments and boards within
As Mr. Hannigan's question pointed out, Cal-EPA

not

responsible for the permits issued by departments outs
Cal-EPA,, such as Fish and Game.

of

It is OPA's role to

s the

interagency aspects where a permitting situation involves more
than one agency.

If a permitting situation involves only Gal-EPA,

or only the Resources Agency, then we don't have a function.
CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:

What portion of your

ibilities

and your budget and personnel years is devoted to that
coordination function?
MR. SYBERT:

Up until now, I would say no more than 1 to

1-1/2 PYs, and that is part of the problem, and that is what we're
trying to address.

We have not properly done that job

past.
CO-CHAIRMAN SHER::

Ms

ASSEMBLYWOMAN HUGHES:
week.

Hughes?
You were at

Were you the one, or am I just imagining that I

someone from the Governor's Office say that you were
ication of efforts.
MR. SYBERT:

at

Was it you, sir?
Ms. Hughes, I don't

ASSEMBLYWOMAN HUGHES:

Well, why not?

looking at duplications of efforts.
I've heard today, it's
efforts than what we realize.

Why aren'

you

Because, from the testimony
a lot more

I just heard you
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so.

the Environmental Protection Agency was saying they do,
too, and it's getting very, very confusing to me.

do

I don't know

whether any of you are doing anything but trying to justify your
continuing and, hopefully, expanding existence.

Do you think

we could be collapsing some of these agencies or more clearly
defining what their roles are, because yours sounds like a very
exciting role to mediate, but if you don't have a fight, and if
the Department of Commerce is, in fact, bringing together people
who have like goals and desires, there shouldn't be anything to
mediate.

So, can you explain that?
MR. SYBERT:

duplication of effort.

I can try.

I don't believe there's any

The Department of Commerce has the role of

being a business advocate and ombudsman.

They will bring together

people to force-feed a permit application through the system.
That is not OPA's job

. we don't do that.

We are there

there is a dispute to act as a neutral forum and mediate it
between agencies and between levels of government.

Those are

entirely distinct functions.
ASSEMBLYWOMAN HUGHES:

All right.

If business

about helping the economy, how can you help the economy

s

you're also protecting the people who have to live in the
environment and the work force that has to participate
productivity?

I don't see how you separate it.

the

It's all part of

the entire well-being of the state, and you don't see it that
or do you see it that way?
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1

MR. SYBERT:

I quite see it that way, and it

because

there is a balancing of those concerns that OPA has been invested
with the responsibility to mediate disputes, and for example, it's
our responsibility to handle the procedures for siting of
facilities for hazardous wastes, precisely because there are those
kinds of concerns, legitimate concerns, that you just voiced.

We

don't take sides.
CO-CHAIRMAN FARR:

I think the frustration you're

feeling is -- and I'm not necessarily of the opinion of some of my
colleagues.

I think the problem isn't going to be to consolidate

a few staff members into fewer staff members, the problem is
really putting our attention and priority to addressing the real
problem, which is outlined in your paper, that your office, OPR
has the statutory authority to look at all the local, state, and
federal regulations, and to point out where there are conflicts,
inconsistencies, duplication, and to call to the Governor's
attention where those exist so that the Governor can ask the
Legislature to remedy them, and that process has not gone on.
Are you doing anything right now -- just to take a look
at the

you and I've talked about this privately, about the

number of state plans that are required

I think you indicated

there are about 40 in statute that have to be prepared.

Is the

office having the ability -- just among our own backyard, our own
state backyard, much less federal or local -- to look at those
state plans to see where there are inconsistencies, duplication,
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MR. SYBERT

1

state

0

We're almost

and
be out soon.

you weren't
of Commerce is

to

assist businesses
to

1

a gene

to

to make to us
you can do

I

not
to

?
MR.

not

to see
ef

a

master

f

in
lature

At

point, there are a number of important
this area, and I think the most intelligent

to do is to

adopt a wait-and-see attitude for the time being.

I

don't think

it will be that long.
CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:

I'd just like to make a suggestion

that I think would be helpful to our fiscal committees as they
review the budgets of these different agencies with respect to
this permit assistance consolidation and streamlining effort.

If

the Administration could present to our budget committees what
would be the Administration's view on how these agencies fit
together, and what the role of each is with respect to permit
assistance, consolidation, and streamlining, with the personnel
and how much resource in each of these agenc
to that function.

I

is being devoted

think then the Administration would have a

better chance of making its case for the pos
fferent agenc
Now, as

that would 1

to

can see

confusion about the role

our

each

how they f

So I

would do that generally, and then I might take, as a concrete
example, one situation where somebody

coming

assistance and needs help, and then

, to

may

give that as an example to show the
non-overlapping role of these different agencies.
find that that would help the budget committees and
would help the case of the Administration.

-
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I

you'd

Ms

out
create

out
come
What are

resources
department alone

c
Commerce,

out the
to
know

John

I

1

i
?

for

us,

s

a

to

great budget shortfall, would

I

these states where they have saved some money and
still kept effectiveness., because that's our big problem, trying
to save money by doing some sort of consolidation.

You

'S

I

"lean and mean years," and we need you to advise us on how we can
still cut costs and have a functioning, good consolidation.

And

since you say New Jersey is still going through

!

could you give us some sort of update on their experimentation,
're

not only in terms of how they're consolidating,
becoming more efficient and coefficient on less, hope
not more?

And that's what I would like to see

the Administration, and I think that you have
doing that.
MR. SYBERT:
requests, and I'

Those are all reasonable

try to respond to all

CO-CHAIRMAN

:

Mr.
1, Mr.

ASSEMBLYMAN CHANDLER:
I think as one who has sat

, I just

today, and I

some

sincerity of the questions that were asked,
we're finally getting down to
, who is going to get cut.

"nut" of the
In the view of

I

there is one thing, called permit processing.

We've

branches of the Administration here today, and I
we might expect from today is

's going to

in terms of the budgeting, and for those
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us from

1

to,

I

's an

•s

,

Now, I
think

I'm not

a

I

's

functions,

the

two preceding of

are trying to accompl

and I, for one,

personally with each and

every point

the

say that as

last ten years, final

is

somebody

issues, and I

any

excuse 1
I

't have

to catch, but I am going to have to

want

SHER:
Do

, would

I

to

too, Mr.

want
j

MR

and

to

cuts

not
contexts,

context
I

just
are neces
s
f

and
accomplish

one
're already

is an

2

one roof

This

Ms. Neal.
MS. KATHY NEAL:

Good afternoon.

My name is Kathy Neal,

and I am a member of the California Integrated Waste Management
Board.

After listening to some of the testimony today and reading

some previous comments in the paper, I know who we are, but I'm
not real clear on what we are.

My understanding at the formation

of Cal-EPA is that they would have some very specific line
departments directly under their control and relative to the three
environmental Boards, they would serve a coordinating function.
However, if I am to take folks at least at their
perception as presented today, from one of the parts of Cal-EPA,
or as Mr. Strock's new enforcement person called us, I am one of
Cal-EPA's formerly independent units.
CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:
MS. NEAL:

Yes.

That's a direct quote?
At any rate, I was prepared today to go

through a little bit of detail on our permitting process within
the Board, but in the interest of time and in respect to the
length and duration of the testimony, I'll skip over that and go
directly to the core of my concerns.
I'm here today as the Assembly's appointee to the
Integrated Waste Management Board, and I want to

real clear

I am not speaking on behalf of the Board 1 because we

not

had an opportunity as a Board to either review or comment upon the
permit streamlining proposal -- the mystery document, as Ms.
Hughes referred to it -- up to this point, so I am speaking as an
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individual Board
I want to s

that

to the permit

(that I believe you got the draft of today), maybe

extra

copies and I can borrow one?
CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:

We'd be glad to share our

you.
MS. NEAL:

The actual proposal has never

to me or any other Board member that I'm aware of,
being transmitted through the Chair to our staff for

I

that somewhat curious since it was earlier related that

f

document was internally developed, and I would think, as

of

one of their units, we should have been included in
development; however, that was not the case

, I cannot

really comment today relative to the content
comment just
has
of

f

on what our staff's

of

However, I can

development

to

ses that have

on relative to Cal-EPA's

our Board

some
, at

I'm hearing,

other Boards under
coordinating respons

s

on

control or

its

, depending on who you want to

to.
Apparently,
today was
I

find

subject document
to our

very curious that Cal-EPA

- B4 -

was pas

out to

f, marked "
a

f

to

review a confidential document and del
out

the hands of the Board members.

to
These Board

I

I

would remind you, are appointed by both the Governor and the
Legislature to run the Board.

I further understand

-EPA

gave those who were on the preferred distribution list for the
proposal a mere 48-hours to read, analyze, prepare, and return
their comments to Cal-EPA.

I

do not believe this is suff

time for anyone to be able to process a document of that import,
although, maybe in Cal-EPA's defense, this is maybe what you'd
truly consider streamlining.
At any rate, in an attempt to prepare for

hearing

today, my staff called Cal-EPA on Friday to identify and speak
with the deputy responsible for their streaml ....... ~
project.

and

During the course of identifying that person, we were

also informed that another draft proposal had
our comments and

comments were

last Friday -- imagine my surprise!
proposal, but those comments were
I

was attempting to

c

for

c

s

Not only was

a current

by

by 5:00 p.m. on
what the current status was on

any activities were.
We tried to ask further about that speci
and at that time, I think the Cal-EPA staff

I

we'd

realized he had probably provided us with some information

he

should not have, and sort of clammed up and said, "No,

to

talk to the Deputy directly."

We have made numerous c
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ls to that

deputy and our cal

as
to

today, and we were
out when he was

He was

not been
to catch him

1

f

to call us back.
our Executive

My staff then

of

a

the proposal and our Board's comments, and were told
only had a draft and that the executive staff had
little time to try to comment and review, and that they

been

informed, in fact, that this was to be kept confidential

I

found that very curious.
on all

Interestingly, Cal-EPA claims to want to
this responsibility, but they can't even seem to f
direct units, as they call us, are located.
an attempt to

was
our

over to our

from its old location on

Street last

Highway 50 and Watt Avenue
to our

we're now at
sent

I

't even

on

we were.
CO-CHAIRMAN FARR:

Excuse me

're

than the

I'd

're

I

frustrating, and we've been very

-EPA

they circulated this
as

isn't
of that.

to

to
you'll

But, I

s, if not

be a

this
i

to
sues
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see from your roles on the Board of how we can
isms on lack of streamlining in California.
MS. NEAL:

Okay.

Let me say, I do agree that

needs to be some very serious attention paid to our
processes in the state, and they certainly do need to
user-friendly.

made more

I, as one, at my Board is advocating that we

really look critically at what we do with proposals.

I

think

there are some situations where we require a full-blown solid
waste facility proposal that are, frankly, inappropriate for those
activities.

As you may know, we're a new Board, but we're

to look at that; we, in fact, have just put out an RFP to look at
our operations and come up with some recommendations on our own
internal permit process and what we can do to streaml

our

activities.
It's hard for me to comment on what Cal-EPA
will be and how it will impact, other

my

from my past experience with the way they
, I think that what you're real

us so

looking at

on

just

another, and nonproductive, layer of bureaucracy if
adopted.
Their behavior to date has shown us that they're
involved in micro-management to a point that
fact, they have more hampered our ability to move
expeditious fashion than they have supported it.
tried to get Cal-EPA to take a lead on some
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of one in
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and

some asbestos in one

was a crossover

s, and we needed to be able to

and

our

a

We

coordinate with them.

Went to Cal-EPA; tried to get them to take
this

a lead coordinating role; apparently they did not feel
issue was significant or important, and ultimately, our
just got together and began working out the situation

are

working toward some solution.
Let me say that my bottom line here

that I

Cal-EPA is more into doing some empire building instead
streamlining.

of

Their administrative manual

our regulatory proceedings, require a month's review of
regulations prior to our Board consideration,
, so that's

operates under

Then we

month onto permit

our
an

to

process

the
Law, so in

effect, what
activities more
Governor dec

want to eliminate
, an

that is,

s

I

1

by the Governor

but I

were

the

lature,

imination of

roles, that

Governor and

, and not by an
-EPA,

now

to

, to undermine
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in fact,

done by

jurisdictions of the Boards.
I just question, as I said, in closing, whether Cal-EPA
is really where you want to look at consolidating all permitting
activities.

They've been here almost a year, and what they have

proven to do is provide to us, and impose upon us, more
bureaucracy, and lengthen the time -- what I would suggest, if you
want to -- and I do believe that we do need to look at permit
streamlining -- is to really make a good faith effort at getting
all the Boards working together.

I've not had an opportunity to

really look at what the specifics might be, but I do believe in a
lead agency approach; however, I think that the lead agency in
each individual instance ought to be the agency that has the
specific expertise to cover the primary activity of a project.
But the only way that we move forward with, I think, some
effective and substantive streamlining of permitting activities in
the state is if you get everyone working together and you don't
have just a one way dictatorship of "this is the way it's going to
be."
CO-CHAIRMAN SBER:
MS. NEAL:

All right.

Are you finished?

Yes.

CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:

Okay.

Why don't we take your

question, and then we'll move on.
ASSEMBLYWOMAN ALLEN:

Just a quick question.

The

frustration you're having, trying to work with other Boards as
well -- the one example you gave, which even went to the Deputy
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now,
•ve
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1 a
l

us

to ref
we

come forward
ton
the

subject of environmental and regulatory permit streamlining
initiatives.
First, Mr. Feldstein -- his representative is here.
My name is Peter Hess.

MR. PETER HESS:

I'm the Deputy

Air Pollution Control Officer at the Bay Area Air Quality
Management District, the regional district in the 9 counties of
the Bay Area.
The air districts have been working on permit
streamlining for some time.

Since we received authority to issue

permits in 1974, all the air districts have been looking at ways
to improve our operation.

In fact, contrary to what Secretary

Strock said, according to Kate Faye of the federal EPA, the Title
5 Federal Clean Air Act Permitting Program is designed after the
California program, our operating permit program.

We don't want

to stand on our laurels; we want to continually improve what we're
doing.
In that light, we have a lot of things that are being
proposed.

It's frustrating to us in the air districts because

we've been trying to meet with Secretary Strock for some time to
explore all these various options.
we have a lot to offer.

One of the reasons why is that

We have experience, and we have success.

We have a list of exemptions; we have facility permits; we have
permit by rule; we have workbooks directed toward 16-year-old
persons who run small businesses to assist them in permitting
their small businesses; we're looking at establishing small
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iness assistance

as
terms

Act; we have
We have a

to of

That's why we're

workshop in full exploration
expedited permitting

various

a

ses

permit streamlining.

We're glad to hear,

the

that

we received on Saturday at our office, that the

are

not included in the consolidation, but we would 1

with

Cal-EPA, work with the Legislature, to develop

to

streamline the permit process in California so that we
fice any of our

quality or environmental

CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:
Mr. Nazemi,

next witness

Thank you.

South

MR. MOHSEN NAZEMI:

on

not

-- or

Coast.

I

I'm a

,

Divis

to

our New

we've

recent
As

Coast

problems

1

a

area

worst

to our

comprehensive program, we have to
of

a

sources
to

2

, we

have created certain streamlining and new directions initiatives.
I'm not going to talk about all of them.

I have handed out

written testimony and also a publication where we talk in detail
about our new directions program.

I would just like to touch

bases and highlight some of the key elements of our New Directions
that have resulted in our progress.
The first of them is the pre-certification program,
which is to allow manufacturers of mass-produced, off-the-shelve
type of equipment to get certified equipment that meets all of our
requirements ahead of time, and that would allow the end-users to
very easily utilize that pre-certified equipment when they
purchase and not have to wait for another evaluation process, and
their permit fee would be at a reduced cost when they apply for a
permit under that program.
To date, we have certified 27 different types of
internal combustion engines and some other equipments, such as
abrasive blasting systems.

We also have consolidated our air

permitting program into different units that rather than historic
permit unit-type analyses look at facility or industry types as a
whole.

We just reorganized the engineering division.

facility based units.

We have

That allows us to process permits under a

consolidated schedule and not have to break it into different
parts within the agency.
A third initiative that we have started is a quicker
review process.

We have looked at the sensitivity that the small
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to the changing

businesses

ses, and

bus

markets and in order to stay competitive, they need a quick
turnaround.

For

, we have initiated a program that classifies

sources into minor, moderate, and major sources, and the minor and
moderate sources that do not meet any toxic compounds or do not
need detailed analysis, in terms of air quality or public
notification, can obtain their permits within 7 and 30 days
respectively.
This is an ambitious goal; we all realize that.

But I

think the considerable progress that we've made in reducing our
backlog and turnaround time leads us to believe that we can
achieve this goal in the future.

The major sources including

significant toxic sources and federal sources would still require
more

and longer review to protect publ

health.

Just to indicate why the quicker review
and we

's

workable

a new

-- we have

that allows us to automate

of

and we

review,
us

we need

One of

or delays in

permits was incomplete applications.
The
We have

or streaml
ished a program

fort is privatization.
1 train and certify third

party individuals who would be, then, utilized by businesses to
file their applications in a more complete manner, and that would
us to speed

s

review.
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to

Ultimately, our goal is to allow
submitted by these, either to direct electronic or

scanning so that we can process them through our computer program
an expedited manner, and the first group of

be

certified by July of this year, and there are several
measures that are listed in the New Directions -- I won't belabor
you with all of those, but some are very expensive, such as the
Market Incentive Program Reclaim.
One last, but not least, program that I should mention
is our Small Business Assistance Program, which

become

exemplary in the nation, and it provides services
permit assistance to hearing board assistance, to review, to loan
assistance.
There was a mention of a Business Environmental
Assistance Center that was

I

want to

out

South Coast was one of the rna
as

staff-wise, to set up
ses in obtaining their

1

throughout.

c

In closing, we believe that a healthy
air are compatible, and to that end, the streaml
Directions program that we've embraced will
to clean air while providing a better cl
economy in the South Coast, which is the most pol

CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:

Thank you
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New
us on our

a
area

the

Is it

air

to say, Mr. Hess and Mr. Nazemi, that your
quality districts agree that there is a need for
streamlining the permitting process?
do that?

There are opportunities to

And, as you've explained, you're pursuing those, and if

you're as successful as you hope to be, there won't

any

occasion for these state government agencies to come and

on

you to help the businesses that these agencies are trying to help?
MR. HESS:

Absolutely correct.

You always need to

improve and continually review your operations to seek a better
way to do things.
CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:

Ms. Hughes?

ASSEMBLYWOMAN HUGHES:

Might I ask if you ever were

involved in the publication or asked or told or leaked
information about the secret document from Sacramento?
MR. NAZEHI:
document to date.

We have not received a copy

I believe, I just spoke to Mr. Stu

Capitol Corps Secretary, who said he would be sending

out to

1 agencies and we will not receive it until tomorrow
CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:

It was just released today to

1

us, so you'll be getting a copy and be invited to comment, but as
Mr. Strock said, apparently they're not going to try to
"consolidate the air districts into these regional areas, so
perhaps
MR. NAZEMI:

As an example of our streamlining ef

since mid-'91, we have reduced our permit to construct
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more than 77 percent and our elapsed time (which I think is more
important to the businesses than the number of applications) by
more than half, so there are ways that we can reduce and
streamline our work, and I think we are the best people to do it,
because we've been involved in this since the 1940s and we know
what it takes to do an environmental review and, at the same time,
be responsive to the industry.
CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:

All right.

Well, thank you for your

testimony.
MR. NAZEMI:

Thank you.

CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:

Could we have the California Council

for Environmental and Economic Balance come forward?
going to speak or will one speak for you?
MR. JACK GUALCO:
Sher.

Are you all

A team effort, huh?

We're going to speak in unison, Mr.

This is the CCEEB swat team.
We're here because I think it's important for us to

respond to some of the issues that were raised in the OPR report
and that had a number of issues that are worth addressing, and
we've been, fortunately, involved in a number of the
Administration's pursuits of streamlining efforts, so let me just
say that Cindy Tuck is going to deal with a few of the air issues,
Bob Lucas with a few of the hazard issues, and I just want to make
a few general comments about where we stand on some of the growth
related issues, since CCEEB has been such a part of that effort,
as Mr. Farr knows.
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One of the issues that we continue to be concerned about
is the lengthy nature of review, and the process that ends up
doing just as Mr. Farr described, pushing projects into areas
where we may not want to have them located.

And, we're also

concerned that within the context of CEQA deadlines -- and you'll
hear this on the air side -- that state agencies aren't
necessarily getting back within the required amount of time, and
all those projects end up going nowhere outside of the scope of
review.
Then, finally, I think we would agree with those who
suggest that the OPR Clearing House operation ought to be beefed
up as a way of

tr~ing

to deal with those local review processes,

and those we see as very important.

But, since you're running

short of time, I'd like to turn it over to Bob Lucas to deal with
some hazardous issues, and then to Cindy.
MR. BOB LUCAS:

Bob Lucas, representing the California

Council for Environmental and Economic Balance.
Just briefly, obviously we're in support of permit
streamlining, and it's an extremely important issue for all
members of the council that participate in our hazards project,
and we're also quite interested in the report that was just
distributed today and in the particular proposals that are in that
report.
We believe, however, that the proof of the pudding is in
the detail of each of these individual proposals, and in that
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regard, I'd like to offer a caution to you.

I noticed in the

Assembly Office of Research report and also, I believe, in the
earlier Strock or Cal-EPA document, permit by rule is touted as
being a very important permit streamlining tool.

The cautionary

statement, though, is that we, too, were in the same position, I
believe, as the people who drafted the AOR report, referring to
permit by rule, at least about a year ago.
great idea.

In concept it's a

The reason you have to look at the detail, though, is

because the way the current proposal has been constructed, the
Department has inadvertently brought along most of the baggage
that has immobilized the current permit program.
So though it would be easy to enter the permit by rule
process by merely signing up and paying the $1,000 entry fee, you
will still have considerable work that will have to be done on
remediation, on financial assurance, closure requirements which
are still rather ambiguous -- it's not clear how you get out of
the system once you're allowed into it -- and since you would then
be a hazardous waste treatment facility, it also raises local land
use issues, which I think you may have brushed against last year
when you considered some of these issues with PBR.
We're going to be working with the Administration on
this point, but we would like to indicate to you that when
something like this does happen, in which a process is brought
forward to expedite a permit process but, in fact, brings along
the same types of constraints that have been immobilized the

-
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current permit process, it has the potential to act to desensitize
the more appropriate environmental action, such as maintaining
recycling on-site, treating hazardous waste on-site, and so there
could be some additional activities occurring here with removing
untreated hazardous waste off-site as result of the current
program if it were to go into place as it is now envisioned.

I

mention that to you almost as an aside because I happened to
notice that in the Assembly Office of Research report, the concept
of permit by rule is recommended to be broadened and spread across
a variety of programs . . . and it's probably a good idea.
Conceptually, permit by rule could be of great assistance, but if
care isn't taken in the design of the program, it could be a bet
against the future where a program is designed to allow easy entry
but the same difficult maintenance and exit requirements.
Thank you.
CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:

Thank you.

I think that's a

perceptive comment and ought to be taken into account when we
broaden any of these programs to know what we're getting into.
It's kind of an interesting concept -- you can get in, but you
can't get out -- is that right?
MS. CINDY TUCK:
Parr.

Thank you, Chairman Sher and Chairman

Cindy Tuck, also on behalf of the California Council for

Environmental and Economic Balance.
One of the strongest concerns that we hear from the
members of our air quality project has to do with delays in
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getting air quality permits, and we brought this issue to the
Legislature's attention about a year ago, when we sponsored the
introduction of AB 1258, by Assemblyman Polanco.
As you know, this legislation was passed by the Assembly
in January, and it calls for an evaluation of the permit problems
having to do with air quality permits, and when this bill was
heard by the Assembly Natural Resources Committee in January, we
noted that a facility's ability to get an air quality permit
within a reasonable time is crucial to the operation of that
facility.

And we'd like to note that this is true regardless of

whether you're a small facility or a large facility . . . it
applies across the board for business.
We've taken a look at the AOR report and some of the
information in the report does reinforce the need for having the
state get a better handle on exactly what the situation is with
permit delays, at least as far as air permits goes.

And I'd like

to just take two seconds to give some reasons why the permit
delays need to be addressed.

Of course the permit delays cause

problems in bringing new facilities and operations on-line.
That's an obvious one.

They also create problems for facilities

who are trying to work under contracts with their contractors and
subcontractors, timing problems.

They also create problem timings

when you have to schedule the downtime for a facility in order to
install the pollution control equipment.

And finally, in some

cases, they make it difficult for the facilities to comply with
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district regulations and ARB regulations that have mandated
deadlines.
So, of course, the question is how do we solve the
problem?

And you've heard today that Cal-EPA has its proposal.

We just got it this afternoon also, I think you'll be glad to
hear.
CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:
MS. TUCK:

Five seconds after.

CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:
MS. TUCK:

Got it before we did?
(laughter)

Oh, I see.

We do commend Cal-EPA for taking a hard look

at this issue, and we want to work with them.

We didn't take an

official position on the January 2nd draft that was released, and
we do plan to provide formal comments on the one that was issued
today.
For today's hearing, we'd like to make a few general
observations and recommendations, and I think the main point is
that there are some solutions, as Assemblyman Sher has offered in
AB 2781
CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:

Which I might say are patterned on

the initiatives that are being taken in the South Coast district
that we heard from witnesses before.
MS. TUCK:

Some of those types of solutions can be

advanced in the short term, and of course, there are other types
of solutions, such as one-stop permitting and the organizational
changes that Mr. Strock is talking about.
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Coast has been working
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for common types of

lots of dif
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CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:

pre-certification.

.MS. TUCK:
Finally, and we

area at the November
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hearing on the Clean Air Acts so I won't go into length

on

it, but it's a very important area, and it has to do with
implementation overlapping with some of the air district
requirements and ARB requirements.

An example is the clean

regulation, and these are creating real problems for bus
who are trying to comply with the mandated deadlines.

s
ses

We think

there are solutions that will require an environmental review that
allow for compliance with the district regulations.

We want to

work with you and your staffs and all interested parties on
That's one of the areas that needs immediate focus and we'd 1
to get a solution on that this year.
We thank you for the opportunity to respond.
CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:

So, is

fair to say in kind of a

summary of what you said, there are some things we can do in
short term, some specific problems this year, but given the
that bills have to be heard in policy committee in each House
the next three weeks, that it's perhaps unrealistic to
we can, with the full review necessary, make major structural
changes this year?
MS. TUCK:

I think the Council is very willing to

participate in the discussions on those long-term solutions 1
we'd hate for those to stall the things that can happen quickly,
and as you said, the deadlines are coming quickly.
MR. LUCAS:

Fortunately, Mr. Sher, you and others

appropriate vehicles as the basis for some of these detailed
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for your testimony.
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My name is John White.
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reasons
arguable point with
developed.
And
this whole

I was
Assistance
review of
Sybert, that
this existed as one
(inaudible) issue
these problems
people are
I

Assistance were

f

and local permits.

Mr.

was a local permit,

's

to the local

primarily, and I think OPR
government side of the House

in a position

at least, I think, in the

the office they acted to

facilitate business

, if somebody l

McMillan-Brodell(sp?) wants to

a big $500 million paper

plant, it'd be nice if somebody

, "You're probably going

to have trouble if you put it in our

water sewers.

Maybe

you should look for a brackish s

You know, that's the kind

of thing that somebody could, in

help an out-of-state

business do.
I also think that the
as they have developed it, is one
don't know if those are in confl

of Commerce function,
is also beneficial.

I have to say that Mrs.
from what I've seen, and

Wright's attitude is very
she's not out to try to say the
work people through the system and

fallen -- she's trying to
problems.

And I think that the

we haven't talked about

much today, from what I'm hearing

seeing, is that there is

broad agreement on the need
business.

·r

the area of small

I think, clearly, it's

do to a large manufacturer or a set

different between what we
oil refineries who are now

wanting to be exempted from CQEA on a matter of some urgency to
them, versus what we do to small business.
business has a lot of encrusted,
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Okay?

I think small

problems that nobody has

needed, and I think

paid as much attention to as
may be separable and need some

attention, and

of the largest manufacturers with the largest sources of
pollution.
I

think financing is a crucial part of the

small business has.
credit line.

The banks are

people off of

If somebody wants to

and buy some equipment,

they're having trouble having it financed.

I think this is an

area where the State Treasurer has some new programs
you might want to have her come

outline what she's

working on with Commerce and AQ&D

the pollution bill f
for people to use, and so

authority, to get some money out

think that's very important, that we focus on small business,
because I think that's truly where a lot of the problem is,
lot of the competitive pressure

coming from.

At the same time, I think Cal-EPA folks
on their primary mission, which
well, and then let's see how we
(inaudible).

I don't think that

to

s, and manage
to broaden and
is yet in

I can tell, and before we go off

consolidate

I'd like to see us maybe do a 1

coordination among

independent board programs and get the toxics program to
well managed, because I don't think

is, and I think

the areas that they were given primary responsibility
One of the concerns I have with this document,
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initial review don't always hold
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that the Legislature, 10 years
Permit Assistance.
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lot of concern about that.

HR. WHITE:
area of problem.

Well, I think

15

a

other

I think to some extent the

are

surrogates for our failure to

our

environmental problems, such as our

Tom

Bates has a bill to increase

tax on
to want to vote

money into transit -- nobody

that

because of the tax increase -kind of things that are going to
instead of having the employers

of

CO-CHAIRMAN FARR:

I

CO-CHAIRMAN SHER:

Okay, Mr.

;

I

for your testimony.
Thank all of you who came to the hearing
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't heard the
Thank you all.

